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lndependent Auditor's Report

To the Members of lmperial Auto lndustries Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited tfre accompanying standalone financial statements of lmperial Auto lndustries
Limited ('the Company'), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 lVlarch 2023, lhe Statement of
Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive lncome), the Statement of Cash Flow and the
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the standalone financial
statements, including a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

2. ln our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,2013
('the Act') in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the lndian
Accounting Standards ('lnd AS') specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (lndian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and other accounting principles generally accepted in lndia, of the
state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2023, and its profit (including other comprehensive
income), its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

3. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10)
of the Act. Our responsibilities under 'those standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the lnstitute of Chartered
Accountants of lndia ('lCAl') together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Walker Chandiok &Co LLP
lndependent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of lmperial Auto lndustries
Limited on the Standalone Financial Statements for the financial year ended 31 March 2023
(cont'd)

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Repoft thereon

4. Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. Other information does not
include the standalone financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

ln connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated

The Director's Report is not made available to us at the date of this auditor's report. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone
Financial Statements 

"

5. The accompanying standalone financial statements have been approved by the Company's Board of
Directors. The Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of
the Act with respect to the preparation and presentation of these standalone financial statements that
give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive
income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the lnd AS specified
under section 133 of the Act and other accounting principles generally accepted in lndia. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities, selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

ln preparing the standalone financial statements, the Board of Directors are responsible for assessing
the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Dlrectors either intend to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

7. Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

8. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably bdexpected to influence the economic.decisions of users
taken on the basis of these financial statements.
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Walker Chandiok &Co LLP
lndependent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of lmperial Auto lndustries
Limited on the Standalone Financial Statements for the financial year ended 31 March 2023
(cont'd)

9. As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, specified under section 1a3(10) of the Act
we exercise professionaljudgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control,

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3Xi) of the Act we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls;

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management;

Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of Directors' use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue
as a going concern. lf we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continue as a going concern; and

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation;

a

a

a
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l0 We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in

internal control that we identify during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

11. As required by section 197(16) of the Act based on our audit, we report that the Company has paid
remuneration to its directors during the year in accordance with the provisions of and limits laid down
under section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

'12. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order,2020 ('the Order') issued by the Central
Government of lndia in terms of section 143(11) of the Act we give in the Annexure A a statement on
the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4" of the Order, to the extent applicable.

13. Further to our comments in Annexure A, as required by se&ion 1a3(3) of the Act based on our audit,
we report, to the extent applicable, that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for
financial statements;

the purpose of our audit of the accompanying standalone

a
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Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of lmperial Auto lndustries
Limited on the Standalone Financial Statements for the financial year ended 31 March 2023
(cont'd)

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books ;

c) The standalone financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of
account ;

d) ln our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with Ind AS specified under
section 133 of the Act;

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken on record by the
Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2023 from being appointed
as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act;

fl) With respect to the adequacy of the'internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
of the Company as on 31 March 2023 and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in Annexure B wherein we have expressed an unmodified opinion; and

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with rule 11

of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us :

i. The Company, as detailed in note 4.3'1 to the standalone financial statements, has disclosed
the impact of pending litigations on its financial position as at 3'1 March 2023;

The Company did not have any longterm contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses as at 31 March 2023;

ilt. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the lnvestor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2023;

a. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in note 4.46(v) to the standalone financial statements, no funds have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or securities premium or
any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any persons or entities,
including foreign entities ('the intermediariesl), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the intermediary shall, whether, directly or
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Company ('the Ultimate Beneficiaries') or provide any guarantee,
security orthe like on behalf the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in note a.46(vl) to the standalone financial statements, no funds have been
received by the Company from any persons or entities, including foreign entities ('the
Funding Parties'), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Company shall, whether directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party
('Ultimate Beneficiaries') or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries; and'

c. Based on such audit procedures performed as considered reasonable and appropriate
in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that
the management representations under sub-clauses (a) and (b) above contain any

ii.

Chartorpd Accnnnfrnlc

material misstatement.
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lndependent Auditor's Repoft of even date to the members of lmperial Auto Industries
Limited on the Standalone Financial Statements for the financial year ended 31 March 2023
(cont'd)

The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year ended 31 March 2023', and

Provrso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 requtes allcompanies which
use accounting software for maintaining their books of account, to use such an accounting
software which has a feature of audit trail, with effect from the financial year beginning on 1

April 2023 and accordingly, reporting under Rule 11(g) of Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 (as amended) is not applicable for the current financial year.

VI

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's

,4"

{pttrx

Rqgistration

l^'J^
No.:001076N/N500013

Arun Tandon
Partner
IVlembership No. : S1 223
UDI N: 2351 7273BGTXOO401 I

Place: Faridabad
Date:22 September 2023

^h^*^:^n 
l^^^,,^1-il-



Walker Chandiok &Co LLP

Annexure A referred to in Paragraph 12 of the lndependent Auditor's Report of even date to the
members of lmperial Auto lndustries Limited on the standalone financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2023

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books of
account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and
belief, we report that:

(i) (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment and right of use assets.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible
assets.

(b) The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its property, plant and
equipment and right of use assets under which the assets are physically verified in a
phased manner over a peiod of 3 years, wDch )n our op)don, )s reasonab)e hafing regard
to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. In accordance with this programme,
certain property, plant and equipment and right of use assets were verified during the year
and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c)The title deedd of all the immovable properties held by the Company (other than properties
where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of
the lessee) disclosed in note 4.1 to the standalone financial statements are held in the
name of the Company. For title deeds of immovable properties in the nature of 2 lands
situated at Faridabad with gross carrying values of Rs 2240 lakhs and Rs 3471 Iakhs as at
31 tVlarch 2023, which have been mortgaged as security for loans or borrowings taken by
the Company, confirmations with respect to title of the Company have been directly
obtained by us from the respective lenders.

(d) During the year, the Company has revalued land classified under property, plant and
equipment and right of use assets. Such revaluation is based on the valuation by a
Registered Valuer. The class of property, plant and equipment and right of use assets
where the change is'10% or more in the aggregate of the respective netcarrying value, is
as below:

Glass of Property,
Plant or Equipment
or lntangible Assets

Carrying
value as on
31 March
2023 (pre-
revaluation)

Amount of
Change

Carrying
value as on
31 March
2023 (post-
revaluation)

Percentage
change

Land - Owned 10,812 8,302 19,114 77%

The Company has not revalued any other class of its property, plant and equipment and
right of use assets during the year.

(e) No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any
benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act,'1988 (as
amended) and rules made thereunder.

(ii) (a) The management has conducted physical verifieation of inventory at reasonable intervals
during the year, except for inventoly lying with third parties. In our opinion, the coverage
and procedure of such verification by the management is appropriate and where
discrepancies of 10o/o or more in the aggregate for each class of inventory noticed on
physical verification as compared to book records have been properly dealt with in the
books of account. ln respect of inventory lying with third parties, these have substantially
been confirmed by the third parties.

/h\ Ac dionlnoaA in nnla A A4 ln fha c{anrlalnna finonnicl cfcfamanlc fha /'nmnanrr hae hoan
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Annexure A referred to in Parag raph 12 of the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the
members of lmperial Auto lndustries Limited on the standalone financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2023

current assets. The quarterly returns/statements, in respect of the working capital limits have
been filed by the Company with such banks and such returns/statements are in agreement with
the books of account of the Company for the respective periods which were/were not subject to
audiUreview, except for the following:

Name of the
Bank

Working
capital limit
sanctioned
(Amount in
Rs. lakhs)

Nature of
current assets

offered as
security

Quafter lnformation
disclosed

as per
return

(Amount in
Rs. lakhs)

lnformation
as per

books of
accounts

(Amount in
Rs.lakhs)

Difference
(Amount in
Rs. lakhs)

Bank of
Baroda
DBS Bank

Citi Bank

HDFC

HSBC

4,000

2,500

5,000

4,700

5,000

lnventories

Trade receivables

Trade payables

June 2022 31,795

77,530

25,291

52,537

46,324

36,527

(20,742)

31,206

(11,236)

Bank of
Baroda
DBS Bank

Citi Bank

HDFC

HSBC

4,000

2,500

5,000

4,700

5,000

lnventories

Trade receivables

Trade payables

September
2022

58,815

48,596

28,518

56,727

48,013

38,759

2,088

583

(a,241)

Bank of
Baroda

DBS Bank

Citi Bank

HDFC

HSBC

4,000

2,500

5,000

4,700

5,000

lnventories

Trade receivables

Trade payables

December
2022

56,013

26,989

53,1 64

56,'1 1B

52,524

35,305

(1 05)

640

(8,316)

Bank of
Baroda
DBS Bank

Citi Bank

HDFC

HSBC

4,000

2,500

5,000

4,700

5,000

Inventories

Trade receivables

Trade payables

lVlarch
2023

57,098

59,372

27,622

55,655

59,'1 54

36,314

\

1,443

218

(8,6e2)

(iii) (a) The Company has provided loan"s to Subsidiaries durinq the vear as per details q

rt
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Annexure A referred to in Paragraph 12 of the lndependent Auditor's Report of even date to the
members of lmperial Auto lndustries Limited on the standalone financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2023

ount in Rs. Lakhs

(b) The Company has not made any investment, granted any advances in the nature of
loans or provided any guarantee or given any security during the year. ln our opinion, and
according to the.information and explanations given to us, the terms and conditions of the
grant of loans are, prima facie, not prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

(c) ln respect of loans granted by the Company, the schedule of repayment of principal and
payment of interest has been stipulated and principal and interest amount is not due for
repayment during the reporting period.

(d) There is no overdue amount in respect of loans or advances in the nature of loans
granted to such companies, firms, LLPs or other parties.

(e) The Company has granted loan which had fallen due during the year and such loan was
extended during the year. The details of the same has been given below:

(f) The Company has not granted any loan which is repayable on demand or without specifying
any terms or period of repayment.

ln our opinion, and according to the info'rmation and explanations given to us, the Company has
complied with the provisions of section '186 of the Act in respect of investments made and loans
granted, as applicable. Further, the Company has not entered into any transaction covered under
section 185 and section 186 of the Act in respect of guarantees and security provided'by it.

t

Particulars Loans

Aggregate amount provided/granted during
the year.

- Subsidiaries 45

Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date
in respect of above cases.

- Subsidiaries 139

Name of the party Total
loan
amount
granted
during
the
year

Aggregate
amount of
overdues of
existing loans
renewed or
extended or
settled
by fresh loans

Nature of
extension (i.e.
renewed/
extended/fresh
Ioan provided)

Percentage of the
aggregate to the total
loans or advances in
the nature of loans
granted during the
year

Imperial Auto
Germany
GmbH, Pleidelsheim
(formerly known as
Sb Rohrform Und
Schlauchtechnik
Gmbh)

45 94 Extension of loan
tenure

209%

(iv)
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Annexure A referred to in Parag raph 12 of the lndependent Auditor's Report of even date to the
members of lmperial Auto lndustries Limited on the standalone financiai statements for the year
ended 31 March 2023

(v)

(vi)

(vii) (a)

(b)

ln ouropinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not accepted any deposits or there are no amounts which have been deemed to be
deposits within the meaning of sections 73to76 of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance
of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(v) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Central Government has specified maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1)
of section 148 of the Act in respect of the products of the Company. We have broadly
reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the Rules made by
the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records and are of the opinion that,
prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained.
However, we have not made a detailed examination of the cost records with a view to
determine whether they are accurate or complete.

ln our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, undisputed
statutory dues including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees'state
insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added
tax, cess and other material statutory dues, as applicable, have generally been regularly
deposited with the appropriate authorities by the Company, though there have been slight
delays in a few cases. Further, no undisputed amounts payable in respect thereof were
outstanding at the year-end for a period of more than six months from the date they became
payable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no statutory dues
referred in sub-clause (a) which have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities
on account of any dispute except for the following:

t

Name of
the
statute

Nature
of dues

Gross
Amount
(in Rs.
lakhs)

Amount
paid

under
Protest
(in Rs.
lakhs)

Period to
which the
amount
relates

Forum where
dispute is
pending

Remarks,
if any

Central
Excise
Act,
1944

Excise
Duty

I 2021-22 Directorate
General
GST
Intelliqence

of
NA

lncome
Tax
Act,1961

lncome
Tax

oz 62 AY 2016-17,
AY 2017-18,
AY 2018-19

CIT
(Appeal)/ITAT

NA

CGST
Act,
2017

GST
Credit

36 2019-20 GST Appellate
Tribunal

NA

(viii) According to the information and explanations given to us, no transactions were surrendered
or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the lncome Tax Act,
1961 (43 of 1961)which have not been previously recorded in the books of accounts.

(ix)
(a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted in

repayment of its loans or borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us including representation received
from the management of the Comppny and on the basis of our audit procedures, we report
that the Company has not been declared a willful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or government or any government authority.
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Annexure A referred to in Paragraph 12 of the lndependent Auditor's Report of even date to the
members of lmperial Auto lndustries Limited on the standalone financiai statements for the year
ended 31 March 2023

(c) ln ouropinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, money raised
by way of term loans were applied for the purposes for which these were obtained.

(d) ln our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, and on an
overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised by the
Company on short term basis have, prima facie, not been utilised for long term purposes.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
financial statements of the Company, the Company has not taken any funds from any entity or
person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries or associates .

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not raised any loans
during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries or associate companies.

(x) (a) The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments), during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or (fully, partially or optionally) convertible debentures during the year.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xi) (a) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no
fraud by the Company or no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during
the period covered by our audit.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made to
us by the management of the Company, no report under sub-section 12 of section 143 of the Act
has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule '13 of Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014,wilh the Central Government for the period covered by our audit.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made to
us by the management of the Company, there are no whistle-blower complaints received by the
Company during the year.

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not appticable to it.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xiii) ln our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions
entered into by the Company with the related parties are in compliance with sections 17T and 1BB
of the Act, where applicable. Further, the details of such related party transactions have been
disclosed in the standalone financial statements, as required under lndian Accounting Standard
(lnd AS) 24, Related Party Disclosures specified in Companies (lndian Accounting Standards)
Rules 2015 as prescribed under section 133 of the Act.

(xiv) (a) ln our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
an internal audit system as per the provisions of section 138 of the Act which is commensurate
with the size and nature of its businebs.

) We have considered the reports issued by the Internal Auditors of the Company till date for the
od under audit.

rding to the information and ex['lanation given to us, the Company has not entered into any
transactions with its directors or persons connected with its directors and accordin gly,

reportino under clause'3(xv) of the Order with resoect to comoliance with the orovisions of ser:tion
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Annexure A referred to in Paragraph 12 of the lndependent Auditor's Report of even date to the
members of lmperial Auto Industries Limited on the standalone financial statements for thd year
ended 31 March 2023

(xvi) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-lA of the Reserve Bank of lndia
Act, 1934. Accordingly, reporting under clauses 3(xvi)(a),(b) and (c) of the Order are not applicable
to the Company.

(d) Based on the information and explanations given to us and as represented by the management of
the Company, the Group (as detined in Core lnvestment Companies (Reserve Bank\ Directtons,
2016) does not have any ClC.

(xvii) The Company has not incurred any cash losses in the current financial year as well as the
immediately preceding financial year.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, reporting
under clause 3(xviii) of the Order'is not applicable to the Company.

(xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
other information accompanying the standalone financial statements, our knowledge of the plans
of the Board of Directors and management and based on our examination of the evidence
supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that
any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not
capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an
assurance as to the future viability of the company. We further state that our reporting is based on
the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance
that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get
discharged by the company as and when they fall due.

(xx) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not have any unspent
amounts towards Corporate Social Responsibility in respect of any ongoing or other than ongoing
project as at the end of the financial year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

(xxi) The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of standalone
financial statements of the Company. Accordingly, no comment has been included in respect of
said clause under this report.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Reoistration

Ag,u* L-t"
No.:001076N/N500013

Arun Tandon
Partner
Membership No.: 517273
UDIN: 2351 727 3BGTXOO4O1 I

Place: Faridabad
Date:22 September 2023

I



Walker Chandiok &Co LLP

Annexure B

lndependent Auditor's Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the
standalone financial statements under Glause (i) of Sub'section 3 of Section '143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act')

In conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of lmperialAuto lndustries Limited
('the Company') as at and for the year ended 31 Nlarch 2023, we have audited the internalfinancial
contro'ls with reference to financial statements of the Company as at that date.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for lnternal Financial
Gontrols

2. The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting ('the Guidance Note')
issued by the lnstitute of Chartered Accountants of lndia ('lCAl'). These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of the Company's business, including
adherence to the Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act. .

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the lnternal Financial Controls with Reference to
Financial Statements

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing issued by the ICAI prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable
to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, and the Guidance Note
issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

4- Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
ftnancial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes obtaining an
understanding of such internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists,
and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error.

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements.

Meaning of lnternal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

6. A company's internal financial controls.with reference to financial statements is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliabilityof financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purpoEes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internalfinancial controls with reference to financial statements include those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
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Walker Chandiok &Co LLP
Annexure B to the lndependent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of lmperial Auto
lndustries Limited on the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Cont'd)

provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets

that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

lnherent Limitations of lnternal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

7 . Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial. controls with reference to financial statements to future periods

are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with- the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

B. In our opinion, th6 Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2023,
based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by

the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
issued by the lCAl.

For Walker Chandiok & Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Regstration No.. 001,

A}-.u" 4"*J^
Arun Tandon
Partner
lVembership No.. 51 7273

, LLP

076N/N50001 3

U Dl N : 23517 27 3BGTXOO4O 1 I

Place: Faridabad
Date:22 September 2023

)



iAi IMPERIAL AUTO INDUSTRIES LIMITED
Standalone Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2023
{Allamounts in INR lakhs unless stated otheruise)

Notes As at
31 March 2023

As at
31 March 2022

ASSETS

Non{urrent assets
Property plant and equipment
RlghFof-use assets

Capital work-in-progress
lntangible assets
Financtal assets

(i) lnvestments
(ii) Other financial assets

Other non-current assets

Current assets
lnventories
Financial assets

(i) Trade receivables
(ii) Cash and €sh equivalents
(iii) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
(iv) Loans
(v) Others financial assets

Other current assets
Tolal current assets

Assets classified as held for sale

Total assets

4.1
4.1
4.1

4.2

4.7
4.8(a)
4.8(b)

4.9
4.4
4.5

4.1

4.16

4.12
4.13

4.14
4.15

42,97A

15,776
1,285

55,655

'14,335

5,200
4,465

719

31,672

7 1A8

1.202

42

1 5,8s3

14,335

93,

3,852

550

19,098

1,674

9,002
795
426

801
4.4
4.5

4.6 44,728

42,639
238

58
90

2,580

59 154
107
61

J39

2,695

52434

EQUIry AND LIABILITIES

Equity
Equity share capital
Other eq!ity

Total equity

4.14
4.11

Liabilities
Non{urent liabilities
Financial liabilities

(i) Borowings
(ii) Lease liabitities

Provisions
Defered tax liabilities (net)
Total non-current liabilities

Curent liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Botrryings
(ii) Lease liabilities
(iii) Trade payabtes

Total outstanding dues of micro entercrises and small enterprises

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises
and small enterprises

(iv) Other financial tiabitities
Other cutrent Iiabilities
Provisions

Total current liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

Signif icant accounting poljcies

The accompanying notes are an integrar part of the standarone financiar statements.

Tqis is the sta.dalone balance sheet re.ereo to tn ou. repoi of even date.

For Walker Chandiok and Co LLp
Charteted Accountants

number: 001076N/N500013

rt

4.13
34,24A

2,228

5,765 5 324

28 68730,5494.16
4.17
4.18
4.14

745

379
678

105 103
73,9444

3

'M;;."$

J*1d,#4 il^W-/a

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
lmperial Auto lndustries Limiled

t\ fur&-
Tarun Lamba
It4anaging Di.ector and Chief
Executive Officer
DIN:01895353

Arun Tandon
Partner

[/embership No:517273

Place: Faridabad
Date: 22 September 2023

DIN:00109439

Place: Faridabad
Dtte: 22 September 20Jd

ffl*rnL
DitipT]J*'
Chief Financial Officer
PAN: ADlPT4267D

Place: Faridabad
Date: 22 September 2023

Company Secretary
ACS-'12336

Place: Faridabad
Date: 22 September 2023

d/ll'al$ u,a)^9*'4'
Vikram Mehra

Place: Faridabad
Date: 22 September 2023

7 aqtt.,-a 7417
1,25,565 1p1,760
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iAi IMPERIAL AUTO INDUSTRIES LIMITED
Standalone Statement of profit and Loss for the year ended on 31 March 2023(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

Notes For the year ended
3l March 2023lncome

For the year ended
3'l March2022

Revenue from operations
Sale of manufactured products
Sale of traded products
Sale of services

Total
Other operating revenues
Total revenue from operations

Other income
Total income

Expenses
Cost of material consumed
Purchases of stock-in-trade
Changes in inventories of finished goods
work-in-progress and stock-in-trade
Employee benefits expense
Finance costs
Depreciation and amortizatjon expenses
Other expenses
Total expenses

4.'19

4.20

4.23

4.24

4.25
4.26

4.1 and 4.2
4.27

2,78,215
3,150

437
2,81,802

5,290
(1,058)

1,86,299
1 ,956

(2,522)

13,565
2,502
7,880

1 97,823
1,757

319
1,99,899

1,28,009
1 ,819

(3,e07)

11 ,539
1,757
6,102

599

18,396
(3,539)
14,857

4,812
(161)

4.21

Profit before exceptional items and tax
Exceptional items
Profit before tax
Tax expense:

(1) Cutrent tax i
(2) Deferred tax

4.28

Profit for the year (l)

Other comprehBnsive income
Items that will not be reclassified subsequenfly to profit or loss

-Revaluation of land
-Tax effect on revaluation of land
-Remeasurement of defined benefit asset*
-Tax effect on remeasuremenl of defined benefit asset*

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of taxes (ll)

Total comprehensive income for the year lll = (l+ll)

Earnings per equity share lnominal value of shares INR 1 O (prevjous year tNR 1 O fully paid up]
(1) Basic
(2) Dituted ::?

Significant accounting policies 
3

* Rounded off to zero

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the standalone financial statements.

This is the standalone statement of profit and loss referred to in our report of even date.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLp
Chartered Accountants
Firm's registration number: OO1076N/N500013

't 1,186 '10,206

2,949

t

4.1 8,449
968)

(0)

0

(745)
(2)

1

6,481 2,203

!fu'{^"'1" *qffifu J*^^,1*t---
Tarun Lamba /

7.80
7.80

7.45
7.45

For and on behatf of the Board of Directors of
lmperial Auto lndustries Limited

Managing Director and Chief
Executive Officer
DIN:01 895353

Arun Tanden
Partner

l\,4embership No.: 51 7273

Place: Faridabad
Date: 22 September 2023

Place: Faridabad

'fu,,{*;il'

DIN:001 09439

Chief Financial Ofiicer
PAN: ADlPT4267D

dl^rah, v ol"tL

Place: Faridabad
Date: 22 September 2023

Vikram Mehra
Company Secretary
ACS-1 2336

Place: Faridabad
Date: 22 September 2023

16,6€
(1,225)
15,418

Place: Faridabad
Date: 22 September 2023
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iAi IMPERIAL AUTO INDUSTRIES LIMITED
Standalone Cash Flow Statement fot the year ended 31 March ZO23
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

Particulars For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

A. Cash flow from operating activities
Net profit before tax

Non-cash adjustment to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:
Depreciation and amortisation expense

Allowance for expected credit loss
(Gain)/ loss on sale of property, plant and equipment
Impairment loss on asset held for sale

Provision for diminution in value of investmenls
Assets written off
Provision for Obsolete lnventory
Dividend received.
Unrealised foreign exchange gain
Finance costs

lnterest on lease liability created as per lnd AS 116

COVID 19 related rent concessions
Gain on lease modiflcations

lnterest income

Operating profit before working capital changes
Movements in working capital :
(lncrease) / Decrease m operaflng assefs l

Trade receivables
lnventories .

Loans
Other financial assets
Other assets

lncrease / (Decrease) in operating liabilities:
Trade payables
Provisions
Other liabilities
Other financial liabilities

Cash generated from operations
lncome tax paid
Net cash (used in)l generated from operating activities [a]

B. Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment including intangibles assets and capital
advances
Proceeds from disposal of property plant and equipment
Sale/(Purchase) of investment in wholly owned subsidiaries Companies
Sale/(Purchase) of investment in associate Companies

lnvestments redeemed from deposits
lnvestments in deposits with banks
lnlerest received
Dividend received.

Net cash used in investing activities (b)

C. Cash flow from financing actlvities
Net (repayment) / proceeds from short-term borrowangs
Proceeds from non-current borrowings
Repayment of non-current borrowings
Payment of lease liabilities
lnterest and finance charges paid

Net cash generated from financing activities (c)

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (a)+(b)+(c)
Cash and cash equivalenl at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalent at the end of the year

10,169 2,342

238 172

14,857

6,102

(e8)

1,332

53

(0)
(206)

1,345

412
(86)

(1 60)

(e7)

15 418

7,880

1uu'

57
?54
564

(0)
(410)

2,060

442

(s1 )

(123)

26,044

( 1 6,1 43)
(7,491\

(4e)
(414)
(b/)

2,303
171

(67)
(144)

23,691

(6 e2e)
(12,220)

(37)
(46)

(4e8)

2,745
(625)

469
209

it

4,',|43

(9,543)

6,759

(7,848)
3 334

144
50

192

(4,068)

:*
1 06)
44

0

(9,011)

60
0

66(131)

15,040
2,500

(3,132)
(2 204)
(2,03e)

7 200
(2,387\
(2.040)
(1.323)



iAi IMPERIAL AUTO INDUSTRIES LIMITED
Standilone Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 3l March z0Z3
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

Particulars As at
31 March2023

As at
31 March202zCash and cash equivalent

On current accounls
(refer note 4.8 (a))

Cash in hand

. Rounded off to zero

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the standalone financiar statements.

This is the standalone statement of cash flows referred to in our report of even date.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLp
Chartered Accountants

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Imperial Auto lndustries Limited

81

26
207

Eirm's registralion number:

44.,. ,L^J=
001 076N/N50001 3 /

J"-"',&"\+q
ldJ,;ni:?',ffi

**,,pt
Arun Tandon
Partner

Membership No.: S1Z2Z3

Place: Faridabad
Date: 22 Septembet 2023

PAN: ADlPT4267D

Place: Faridabad
Date: 22 September 2023

Managing Director and Chief
E)Et$NES\5)ret
DIN:01895353

Place: Faridabad
Date: 22 September 2023

Vikram Mehra
Company Secretary
ACS-12336

Place: Faridabad
Date; 22 September 2023

dt qon v-d,0,4

t

DIN:00109439

Place: Faridabad .4
oate, zz septemo/6zg

Pk#_



-

\d
I

(1)

3
a,
q
5
C

\
dr\

_J_1 '
.1

8q
.:{E

G

7c(>f?E,<F
-E-:<-

No
N

o
_!

po
6r)
IN
..N
oO!Eo-o

bg
o

6a I
=> i;
tr6 N

:6 6

o

E
J
o

tr
o

=

o
e
o

.go
o
E
.o
o
o

oc
oo
E
o
!c
o
o
L

o
No

u o XE; N ;O'X $ aa

.=!trN
[ < ..No ..
a > doE a .sEo r 0-o

.e
^!OUN
-o
oo

6.9o o e.=tso o oooo p o
OO^ 6-'
.E.U 6 r!!
o=ro i o o ..
- X: o osx< sE>uo ao

t

oNaN
o_o

N.L
od
Po
Ia)
LN
..N
o ..
9ggG
0-o

o
oo
o
9z
o

-_ft E

-gtE
H'Ee*

\ d=

-+( -t.<r
-)

ijl

.g pai

g :o
> LO

E
tr
GFo

LO
<o_

.)

-J
\)

<t:

N

N
E

=
!
E
tro

ooEA
,a

>5
oE oU 1-FH6
>cq

u o9?
tr;!-FE 3oo -lE o
^Ot1c6
^ o-UcE

<g.E
)th,^
{o!
U:O

=E6<x<

o
G
!

-.c2a
C>
oo

g6
ad
OL'-=
Eo

o€
C-thi

6(;:.
;o

o
Etlo
_='oo:o!9

;:_o-\

EE,qO--z;i*o.P
- t^=

9 0 
== 

ts

- O -!c
>E6:0
6 fi r\ v o

!aab 9 -9pao = ;gpE .e lP_,
@ .q LNFr E oc_=F F IOTm

o
o
G

6
o
F

lo
,6

oE
o
e
E
oI
o

o

o
E
o
.=

o

o
o

Eo

@
d

o
'tr-

Go
Eo
'6
od

ot
o

E

E
oc
o
(9

E

Eo
q

.g

oo
tt)

o

o
o

-o

o
tr
G

ot
o
oot

ot
o

E

'a
6o

?.g

E
d
0-

N

ts

o
E

,E
o
'd

o
!
@

E
o
a

6

G

N

soc!
N

NFo-
o
@

N

N

o

No
N

-qo

o6ON

o
oc

G

o o

o- o
Gc

o

o
e
o
o o:

.9.
C
o

c
,a
o:o
o
o

E
.I
Eo
o
o
o
a

oQNN
@

qo3
NOv
\N-
oo

@@@@
NE
dd

@r$@
o vo @N NT
o N@

@@
N
o-
N

cEQc-.:e
Odi

ACq.9
ol>o-
;i-

a69
oFl:

;a:o _o

,9
o
.9
o
o

oc
o!
Eo
c
o
!
o

o:

-Y

go
[0<t

o
@
$-
@

N

@
@
ts

@
@
N.
@

o
G

o
o
trg
6
@

N
No
N

oo
ot
o

c
.e
og-o
o
o

!

o
C
o
E
o

rO
o
o-
o-
o
o
C
,e
o
=G
o
o

o 6o
@ -@

-o66@-

soo
+

I-solN-o
l@No
lrt rf
t-

o
oz

oo

6-
q
a
o
6E

oo

;
o
c
Gco,

6

NN
o
N
E
Y
o

=o
G

6
oo
o
oc

'=
d
o

._E

G

o
E

I



I

iAi IMPERIAL AUTO INDUSTRIES LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless stated otheMise)

A NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

1 Corporateinformation
rmperiar Auto rnduslries Limited was jncorporated on 22 Aprir 1 975 under the companies Acl,1 956.

The company is engaged in manufacluring of fluld and gas transmisslon producrs for lhe automobire and ott high@y sector rike defence, rairways,agricullure'andearlhmovingmachineries lGp,oou"t,"ngJin"rri"lpipesanor,osesorv"r'or,,r*lo,o,o"*"rappricationsincrudjng:

'l Rubber hoses and assemblies includes radialor and heater hoses, fuer& vaaum hoses, siricon hoses, @-extruded hoses, and branch hoses.2 Melallube assemblies includes fuel iniecrion tuoes' common ra]iiirecr ruet in;ecrion lcnory uoes, ny-a-iJiJt,oes and exhaust gas recjrcuration (EGR)
i. il"jitji,i"i:lfitiirlues 

include hish'pressu* nvjo,ri" rro.", po,,'lr sreering hose, poryrer,"ru",o"ir,vr"n" iprrE) hose. break hose anu nyron ture.

2 RECENT ACCOUNTING PROUNCEMENTS

l\'4inistry of corporate Affairs ('McA") notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards under companies (rndian Accounting standards)!#,Tffi:::l;:['lTji?,"ili,jliil,ljiHfifttt",i:i5l",f:*H;X*,"ffiHJJ(iilH:@un.ns standads) A,"nj,"ninur",,

lnd AS I presentation of Financial Stafement

ffiH::1T:[ t;?:se 
'malerial arcounting policies' instead of 'signifi€nr ac@uniing poticies' and related guidance included to determine whelher the

lnd.AS 8 Accounting policies, Change in Accounting Estimates and ErrorsD€finition of 'a*ounting estimates' now included i" ,r,"-"t"rl"il *oirg distinction between change in a@ounting estimates from change in a@ounting

lnd AS '12 Income Taxes
rransactions that does not give rise lo equal laxable and deductible lemporary djfferences al the time of iniljal lransaction have now been inctuded in theexemptions for recognilion of deferred tax liabilily and deferred tax 

"sse-.ts 
in 

"ase 
or t"rable temporary differences.

The company is @rrenlly evaluating the impacl of amendments to the aforementioned ac@unt,ng standa.ds on its standalone financial statements.

3 BASIS OF ACCOUNTING AND PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.1 StatementrofCompliance
The Fnancial slatements have been prepared to comov rn all mate'ial resoecls wth r,he.lnoian Ac@unling staldaros {lnd ASr as notrfieo by Minisrry o.corpo're Affairs under secrion 133 0f rhe compani;. ea, zorii;ii" Acl,) read with the comoanies lrndian

;ff|',"""'. jlir'"'l':i"n requremenls or Dvs04 , 
"r 

s"r"o,Llrii"ir,";"ffi;;. il ;; i"lff X.'1f*ffi;t::":l?ii;';J:h:,1?l"t*i
The financial statements are presented in lndian Rupee ('lNR') wtiich is also lhe funclional curency of the company.
The inancia I statements fot the year ended 31 March 2023 were authoised and approved for jssue by the Board of Directors on 1 6 september 2023

3.2 Basis of preparation and presentation
The financial statemenb have been prepared on accrual basis under rhe hrstori€r cost convention except for certain financiar insl.uments that aremeasured al Eir values at the end of each reponing period, as expt"ini'i in tn" ,""ornting pohcies bel@.Historicl @s1 is generally based on the iai. value of lhe consideration given in exchange for goods and seryices.Fair value is the price lhat rculd be reeived lo sell an asset or paid to lransfera riabirily in an orderry rransaclion between market parlicipants at themeasuremenl dale' regardless of whether thal price is drrectly obseryarte-or estimateo using another valuation i"Jniqr". ln estjmating the fair varue of anasset or a liability' lhe company takes into ac@unt the 

"r,"L"i"^ii"" or u" aset or rloiitl ii mar*o p"n,.pZ'"o *"r,0 take those characteristi* intoaccountwhenpricingtheassetorliabilityattn"teasurer"nioai".i-"lr-r"rr"to,."""u,"."n,unoioioi*rolliepurposesinthese 
financiarstatemenrsis delermined on above basis exeptmeasurements thar have s;;; s;i;rities to rair varu" ;;l;;;"i;;;;r";,:ucn as net rearisabre varue in rnd AS 2 .lnventories orvalue in use in lnd AS 36 - lmpairment of Asrets.

3.4 lnventories
lnvenlories are valued at the lowet of cosl and eslimaled net realizabre varu-e lnel of ailo@nces) afrer provrding for obsorescence and orhe. rosses, whereconsidercd necessary' The cosl comprlses cosl of purcn"""' *r-or *nu"oion and other cosrs hcluding appr;priale productjon overheads in the €se offinished goods and work in prooress' incurea in bringing uci, i**r",*" t" tn"i, present roetion and cJno,iioniirro" oi."ounts or rebates are deducled
13,*'J[::,i[;:l'":|:i::::* 

Net realisabre Lr'"Lp,"""rti *," 
"st]mated 

serins p,io ro, inu"nto,i". 
'Lss 

a, estimated cosrs or compretion and

]1ff:|Iffi[,[::H5,':""5:iJi,:ffi:"il1.if3[il"X,j,lj;,?i"'ig.ilortaxcreditswhereverapprj€bre) isdeterminedona FirsrnFirstourbasis,and

q

(This space has been left blank inten|onally)



iAi IMPERIAL AUTO INDUSTRIES LI[IITED
Noles to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Allamounts in INR lakhs, unless stated otheeise)

3.5 Taxation

[TffiJffiJ:ilJ""J:""",Ti::lJ!.::,",jil"nt or Prort and Loss @mprised the sum or dererred tax and erent tax excepr the ones recosnised in other

Current Tax
currenl 1ax is the amount of lax payable on the laxable income for the yeat as determined in accordance with the appli€ble income lax laws of lndiaTaxable profit differs from 'proflt before lax' as reported . ti," siut"."nr of profil and ross be€use or iiems-or income or expense that are taxabre ordeduclible in other years and items thal are never laxable o, o"ou"tlot". The current tax is calculalJ using tax rates rhal have been enacled orsubstantively' enacted by the end of the reporling period.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is re@gnized on tempoEry differences between the €rrying amount of assets and liabilities in the financial stalements and quantilied usingthe tax rates and laE enacted or substanlively enacled as on the B'alance sheet date. Defeffed tax liaoilities are recognised for all taxable temporarydifferen@s' Deferred tax assels are generally re@gnised for all deduclible temporary differences to lh" urtJ tn"t ,t ia p,ooable that taxable prolits will beavailable against whlch lhose deduclible temporarydifferences an be urilised. sucli defered tax assers ano iiabrlities are not recognised if the temporarydifference a rises from the initial re@gnition of asseis and liabilities in a trensaction that affects neither the taxable profrt nor the ac@u ntrng prof t. 

)

The €rrying amount of defetred iax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the exlent that it js no longer probabje thatsltficient taxable profits will be avallable to allow all or part of the ;.s"1 to o" ,""ov"r"a.
Deferred tax ljabilities and assels are measured al lhe lax rates ihal are expected 10 apply in the period in which the liabilib/ is sellled or the assel realisedbased on tax rates (and tax laE) lhat have been enacted or substaniiu"y 

"nu.r"o 
by the end of the reporting period.

The measuremenl of deferred 1ax liabilities and assets reflects the tax @nsequences lhat @uld foilow from the manner in which the company expects, atthe end of the .eporling period, to re@ver or seltle the €rrying amount of ils assels and liabililies

Current and Deferred tax for the year
currenl and deferred tax are recognised in the stalement of Profil and Loss, except when they relate lo items that are recognised in other @mprehensiveinrcme or directly in equity' in which ese' the arrenl ano oeieriJ tax are also recognised in of,er compr"nen"ive income or direcly in equity
iiili,lllSY;fllr[i"]rql 

tax or defered tax arises h'om the initiataccountins ror a bu"inui. *ruin"rion, rnl rax effecr is incruded rn the accounrins for

3.6 Property, plant and equipment {,ppE,)
Euildings held lor use in the produclion or supply of goods or services, or for admjnisrrative purposesj are srated in the barance sheet at mst ressaccumulated depreciation and acilmulated impairmentlosses. Freehold land is not deprecialed.Land is varued at fair varue. surprus frcm revaruation is transferreJto revatuafion reserve.

Properties in the @urse of rcnstructron for production, supply or adminislEtive^purposes are Gried at @st, less any re@gnised impairment loss. Forqualifying assets' borrowing msts are €pitaljsed in acoioance with ;d.AS 23 -. Borowing *"t". iuih-prop"n:"s are crassified to the appropriare€legones of property' pla't and equronenl w+en completed ana ,eaoy fo, intended use. o-"o."a,"tion-otinu'." assers. on rne same basis as orherproperty assets, €mmences !4hen the assets are ready f;r their intended use.

Property' plant and equipment (PPE) are slaled al @st less a@umulated depteciation and acrumulated impairment losses.

Property plant and equipment are, epilalised at costs relating to the acquisit jon and installation (net of tax credits wherever appliable) and include financecost on borrowed funds attributable to acquisition of qualifying fixed assets for the perioo up to ine aat" wtren itre asset is ready for ils intended use, andadlustments arising from foreign exchange difierence; ari;in;o;;;reiq;currency oorrcwings ro the extent they are regarded as an adjustmenr to interestcosts other incidental expenditure attributable to bringing lhe ro"i"a."ta to their rcrking condition for intenoeo use are €pitarized. subsequent
::i:ll:*1#l"i'lt"',"r,h"Jrassets 

is cpitalised ontv if suci expenoiture resuls in an increase-in the tuture t"n"fits from sr"h 
".""1 

beyond its previousry

Deprecialion is recognised so as lo wite off lhe @sl or valualion of assels (other lhan freehold land and propefties under conslruction) less thejr residualvalues over lhelr useful lives, uslng lhe Mitten doM vaiue metroa. ihe estmated useful lives, restoual values ano oepreclation method are reviewed atthe end of each reporting period, with the etfect of any changes in 
".tir"1"-"-ounr"o tor on a prospective basis.

Thefanagement belleves that these estimated useful lives are realislic and reflect iair approximalon of the period over which the assets are likely to be

Assets held under leases are depreciated over their expected lease lerm on the same basis as o*ed assets. HNever when there is no reasonabrecedainty that oMe'ship wll be obtained by the end of the lease term assets are depreclated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful lives

The eslimaled useful life constdered for the assets are as under.

Leasehold land thereon are amortized over the p.imary perjod of lease.

An ilem of p'operty, plant and equipment.is dere@gnised upon disposal or wher no future economjc benefits are expected 10 arise from lhe @ntinued useof the assel Any gain or loss arising on the dispos;l or reti;"r";i;i;; ,i;; o; property, prant and equipr"nt i. o"t"-in"u 
"s 

lhe djfference between thesales proceeds and lhe crrying amount ol the asset and is recogni.uo ,n in" 
-st;"r"nr 

of prcfit and Loss

I[:J:]i:iliiff;"iil}l ''* 
and methods or depreciation or propertv. prant and equipment are reviewed al each rinanciar year end and adlusred

ll!9gory of assets Number ofyears
ulqins 3

5
&

ehicles I 0
omputers and soflwaae

L(equjpment



iAi IMPERIAL AUTO INDUSTRIES LIIVlITED
Notes to the financial statements fortheyear ended 31 March 2OZ3
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless stated otheBise)

3,7 lnlangible assets

lntangible assets with finite lsetul lives are crried al cosl less acilmulated amortisation and impairment losses, if any. The cost of an intangibre asselcomprises its purchase price, including any imporl duties and other taxes (other than trr*" .uu."fu"nif i"JJveraole from tne r"x authorities), and anydi'ectly attributable expendltule on making the assel ready for its inlended use and net of any trade iiscounts ano reuates. suusequent expendilure on aninlanglble asset afler its purchase / @mpletion is recognisld as an expense when incurred unless it is p.obable lhat such expendllure will enable lhe asselto generaie future eonomic benefits in excess of ils ;.iginally assessed slandards or p"rio,r"n"" 
"nj 

a-uJ".-rp"no,ru," *n be measured and afl.ibuted1o the asset reliably, in *hich case such expenditure is a;ded to the cost of the assel.

The inlangible assels are amortlzed over lheir respeclive jndividual estimated useful lives on a written doM value basis, commencing from the dale iheassel is available to the company for its use- The amorlisation period are reviered at ihe end of each financial year and lhe amodisation method is .evjsedto reflect the changed pattern.

Derecognition of intangible asets
An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal or when no fu1ure economic benefits ate expected 10 arise from the @ntinued use of the assel. Gains orlosses arising from dere@gnition of an jntangible asset measured as lhe ditference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amounl of theassel, are recognised in lhe Stalement of profil and Loss when the asset is derecognised
The useful life rcnsidered for the intangible assels are as under:

3.9

3.10

3.'11

Revenue recognition
In aEordance with lnd As 115 lhe company re@gnises the amount as revenue from contracts with customers, wtrich is reeived for the lransfer ofpromised goods to customeB in exchange for lhosJ goods- rhe relevanl point in ir" or perlod of tjme is tne trensfer or ontrol of the goods (6nlrolapproach) Thecompanyrecognisesrevenueatpoiniintime.Revenueisreducedfor"r.tor"r,"trrn",t"resJn-sares,esrimatedrebatesandother
similar allo@nces To delermine when lo re@gnise revenue and at whal mount, the five-slep model is applied. By applying rhe flve-slep model distincrpedormance obligations are idenijfred' The lransaclion price is delermined and allocated to te perrormance'ourig"tionl 

""-,oing 
ro lhe requirements of

[1[tr:3r'":T[li:",:.",:"fn";t'il:,il":""'"0 
10 have been ,"1 *h;; il" contror or soods is rransrered io the cusromer.;e., n""",]rv *,i 

""1i,"
Revenue from seryices is recognised as and lahen the seryices are rendered and on the basis of @ntraclual lerms with the parlies.

A receivable is recognised where the companys right to @nsideration is uncondilional. when either party to a mntract has performed, an entity shallpresent the @ntract in the balance sheet as contract asset or @nlract tiaOitity, OepenOing on the .elalionship betreen ihe entity,s performance and thecustomer's payment.

Other income
Dividend ln@me from investments is rYgnlseg vfen the right to receive paymenl has been eslablished (provided that il is probable that the economicbenefils witt flow to the Company and lhe amounr of in@me ;n be measureJ ietiaUyl.
lnteresl income from a flnancial assel rs re@gnised lahen il is probable that the economic benefits will flow lo the company and the amount of rncome canbe measured reliabv' lnleresl income is accrued on a time basis, oy reference to the principle outstanding 

"no "t 
ilu 

"n"alr" 
jnterest rate appli€ble,

ml:ir:t"'i""',,::"""" "xactv 
dis@unts estimated tulure €sh receipoiniorgh lh" 

"rp""ted 
rife of the financi;r asset t; ;at asset's net €.rying amount on

Employee benefits
Employee benellts include wages and salaries, providenl fuhd. employee slale insurance scheme, graluity fund and compensated absences.

Defined Contribution plans
conlributions to defined contribution plans are re@gnised as an expense when employees have rendered seryice entilljng them to the contrib!ljons.
Defined Benefit Plans
For defined benefit retirement plans the cosl of providing benefits is determined using the projected unit credit method, with acluadal valuations being€rried out at the end of each annual repoding period. R-e-measurem"ni, 

"orp,iaing 
ictuarlat lains ana nss, te lnecr of lhe changes to the assetceiling (if applicble) and the relurn on plan ass;ts (excluding net interestl,'is reiilcteo immediatet in the Barance sheetvth a charge or credil recognisedin other comprehensive income in the period in which lhey-ocor rn" ,u-.""su,"munl. of the net defined benefit liability are re@gnised direclly in theolher @mp'ehensive inmme in lhe period in u,rich they arise. Past servte o;t i" ,u"ognis"o ln tne statement or piorit ano Loss in lhe period of a plan

;lu}ili|t; l:'J:,8:;L:.""1?iffiX,* 
appvins the discounl rare 

"r 
th" t"linnins or rhe period ro rne ner delneJ oenenr riabirly or asser. Deiined

a seryice rcsl (including atrent service @st, past service cost, as well as gains and losses on aatarlments and setilements):b. net interest expense or in@me: and
c. re-measurement

The retirement benefil obligation recognlsed ln the balance sheet represents the aclual deficit or surplus in the companys defined benefit plans_ Anysurplus resultrng from this alalation is limited to the present value of any economic benefits available;n the form or r"irno. r,o, the plans or reductionsin tuture @ntribullons to lhe plans.

Other current and non{urrent employe benefits

:if|:1|f,""i:ffJ',t#,"! Ii;*i!l 
or short-term emplovee benerits are measured at the undiscolnred amounl olhe benerits expecled to be paid in

Liabillties recognised in respect of olher long-lerm employee benefits are measured at the present value of the estimated tulure €sh outflows expecled 10be made by the Company in respect of seruices provijejby employe"s up to tle reponino Oate

Foreign currency tEnsactions and tEnslations
Foreign curlency iransactions are recorded al rates of exchange prevajling on the date of transaction. A,4onetary assels and liabilities denominated inforeign currencies as al the balance sheet dale are translaled at-th" ,"ru or 

""r"n"ng" 
prevaillng at the year-end. Non-monetary items €tried at fa r valuethalaredenominaledinforeignarrenciesareretranslaledaltheratesprevailingalthedateu,henthefairvarue*"ai"iu,rruo 

Non-monetaryitemslhatare measured in lerms of historicl cosl in a foreign arrencry are n01 retranslalej

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognrsed in lhe stalement of profit and Loss in which they arise.
According lo Appendix B of lnd AS 21 "Foreign curency transactions and advance consideratron,,, purchase or sale lransactrons must be translated at theexchange rale prevailing on the date the assel or liability is initially ,""ognir"Jln pr"ai"e, lhis is usually the datu on *,t i"h tn" uor"nce payment is paid orreceived' ln the €se of muftiple advances, lhe exchang; .ate muat o" alt*in"o to, 

"ach 
paymenl and collection lransacton

Borrowing costs
BorTowing costs directly attributable to the acquisitidh, construc|on
period of time to get ready for their inlended use or sale. are added
intended use or sale.

All other botrowing costs ate recognised in the Statement ol profit
on olher conlractual obligations.

or production of quarfying assets, which are assets that necessarir, take a substantiar
to the cost ofthose assets. until such time as the assets are subst".,t"ffy ,*Oy1o, tn"l,

and Loss rn the period in whrch they are inared. other finance @sts incrudes interest

\ssts No. of Years
3€

3.12
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Notes to the financial statements for the yea r ended 31 lvlarch 2023(Allamounts in INR lakhs, unless stated otheMise)

3.'13 Leases
The Company as lessee

The company's lease asset classes primarily consisl of leases for Building and planl machinery. The company assesses shelher a conlracl conlains alease' at incepllon of a contract. A contracl is, or @ntains, ; L;"" iitt"" *ntr".t -nreys lhe rdht to @ntr;iin" ,r" ot 
"n 

identified asset for a period oftime in exchange for consrderation To assess whether a ;";tr""t ;;;r"y" the right r; onroi th" use oi an idenlified asset, the company assesseswhether: (1 ) the @nkact involvs the^use oJ an identified 
"";"i i;) il company rias substanriuriy arfoitnu llnomjc benefits from rhe use of the asserthrough the period of the rease, and (3) lhe co.p"ny r,". h" ,ig'hi1i iirla rne use ot tne asset.

At the date of commencemenl of the lease, the company re@gnizes a Right of use (Rou) asset and a @ffesponding lease liability for all leasearangements under which it is a lessee' excepl for short-l;rm leises and row varue reases. ror strort-iermleases and low varue Ieases, the companyrecognizes the lease payments as an expense on a stEight_rine basis over the term of rhe lease.
cerlain lease arangemenls include oplions to exlend or lerminale the lease before ihe end of the lease term. Rou assels and lease liabilities includethese options when il is reasonably certain that ff,ey will Ue exercisea 

'

The Rou assels are inilialv recognized at cost, which @mprises the initial amount.of the lease liability adjusted for any rease paymenls made at or priorto
["r,?#ff|!:IilH;f"""li::.!":* prus anv initiar oi.i *.t. i"'. 

",v 
rease incentives. il;y;;" ;i,;;;;,""ry measured at cost ress a@muraied

[::"1t""r"fi;:"::iteciated 
from the dale of @mmencement of the lease on a stra jghl -tine basis over the shoder of the tease term and the usetut tife of

The lease liab jlity is initially measured-at amodized @sl at the present value of the future rease payments. For leases under ,hich the rare impricit in rhelease is not readilv dete'minable' the company uses irs 
^*;;;;i;;u;*"g rate oaseo on ttre ildrr"tlon 

"i"ir"oru "t 
,r,e dare of @mmencement of rheleas,e in delerminjng the p.esent value of lease paymenls..Le"a" fi"Oifiii,

the companv chanies irs assessment as ro wherh;r ir wir exercise 
"; *t":,int:,:i:ili::,il;:;,;:*"r""0'ns 

adiusrmenl to the relared RoU assel jr

:;ffi5tll"#i:r"3lTij,J*" 
been separalelv presented in the Barance sheet and the payment of principal portion of tease tiabilities has been

3.14 Earnings pershaE

:il""&:ililrT:Hi"f;;:,:":'ffi*',nj ;5/l? '# i::11 ' 
(ross) arrer rax (incrudins rhe posl tax e*ecr or exrraordinary *ems, ir any) by rhe weishred

Diluted eamings [Er shaE is comoute;;;,;;";ffffi il:;;#:rxij"j.:'#iili_n!lT:lli::i1fl,ft3:Ei"j,[t?:],:iflff[J"TT;1li;"11ilr.xj,:::fi#ffiff,:T
average number of equity shares @nside.red for deriving orii" 

""rirga ;"i ah"re and.the weighted average number of equity shares *1,ich @uld havebeen issued on the conversion of all dilutive polential e-quity .n"*". Fot'"nii"i 
"qrity 

shares are oeemed tl ou Jirrrir" ony ir flr"ir @nversion ro equityshares @uld decrease the net profn *t,tl"j: 
PT :":i"ri"g "ro'rrry;p";"iio'ns. 

potentiar dirurive equitlr shares are deemed ro be converted as ar ihebeginnjng of the peflod. unless thev have been issued at a later date. The d;lutive potential equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds rece;vable had theshares been actuallv issued al fair value (i.e., average ;;rk",';"il; ii-in" or,o"no,nn shares). Drrutive porentiar equity shares are determined
$1,,"i:::"#YJ:f,","1:::':ififfi:;: 

rhe number oi 
"q;.v 

il;;;;i"nlia,v djrut,re 
"q,,,y,n,,"" "i"'"J1-u"iJu 

ro,.r,",u sprits / reverse share

3.'15 lmpairment of property, plant and equipment and intangible assetsAl the end of each reporting penod lhe co'p"ny ,"rt"* il l-J"-rf,ng 
"rorn,a 

of rrs p.operty, pranr and equjpmenl and inlangibre assels or %shgeneraling unjts 10 delemine whether there rs any rndietion irr"i iioru 
"aa"ta 

have suffered an impJrent ross. rf any such indi€tion exists, therecoverable amount of the asset is eslimaled in order to determine the exrent of the ,rp"-r""i1".. il ,"]1. wn"n t is nor possibre 10 estimale lherecove'able amount of an individual asset, the company 
"stimat"s 

tt er"cou"rable amount of the esn-g;n";ing unil to utrjch the asset belonos. whena reasonable and @nsistenl basjs ot allo€tron en Le identrfreo' o,for"t" 
".sut. 

ar" at"o 
"rto*t"a 

to iiorriJuar esh-generating units, or otheriaise theyare alloated to the smallest company of €sn-g"n","tinq ,niisior-il,Ih a r"asonaor" and @nsistent a[o€tion basis €n be identified.Recoverable amount is the higher of fair vatue tess oJts or or"por"iana varue in use. rn 
"*"a"ing 

,"ru;in use the estimated fulure €sh f.6 are
fl::*i|"l"")!il i;::ll;:li: f m""Uf il*#tatf fllil5cts 

uren, maTkel assessments or the lime varue or money and rhe * .*"n.-.
lf the recoverable amount of an asset (or €sh-generating unit) is eslimated to be less than its €rrying amount, the e.rying amounl of the asset (or €sh-gene,tina unit) is reduced to its recove*ble;mounr. in t.p"iir"ni toss s recogni*o im;J;;; ;il;; staiemenl of profit and Loss, unress iherelevanl asset is eried at a revalued amounr, in v,llclr ese itrJ rrnpairment toss is treateo as a revaluatron decrease.

when an lmpai'menl loss subsequently reverses. the €rrying amount of lhe asset (or a €sh-generaling unjt) is increased to the revised estimate of itsrecoverable amounl but so lhal lhe increaseo errying amouni oo* nlt exceed rhe carrying 
"rornt 

th;t";uij have been determined had no impairmentloss been tecog nised for the asset (or esh-g*ur"ririg ;n iri in pri*ye-a rs. A reversal of a nlrp"r-"nr lo." ;a' ,""og nrsed rmmediarery in the stalement of
::?::::"*t 

!nless the relevant assel is carried al a revaluea #ounr, in wtrich *ru tn" r"uuo"t oirnJ imparrmenr bss rs rreared as a revaruarion

3.'16 Provisionsandcontingencies
A provision is recognized when lhe.company has a present obligation (legal / @nstrucrrve) as a resull of past events and [ ]s probable rhat an outflow ofresoL.cesrillbereouireorosettlelneob,igatior. rresoecofmlcharelableestimatecarbem"oe. .
The amount recognised as a provislon is the best estimate ot tne consroerarion required to selfle the present oblrgalion at the end of the reporting period,taking into ac@unt the risks and uncertainlies su"ornaing h"-Jiglt]on. wh"n a provisron is measured reing tne cash frows estimated to set,e thepresent obligalion' its crrying amounl is the present value oi lhose e"sn rows lwtren tn" 

"t""r 
or rr," tir" u"l; of money rs marerial).

contingent liability is disclosed for (i) Possible obligatlon which wll be confirmed onry by future events not whoily wilhin lhe conrror of the company or (ii)Present obligations arislng f'om. past events wheie it is noapr;ba;ie-;at an outfrow of resources wiil be requrreo 10 setle the obrigation or a rerabreesr rate ot rne a-o_rr or ttse obligat:or Gr.or O" -r0". Wl* .o.e o. all o. l.e econo_,c oe.etiis.reir,,!,0 ,o ."ntu a prov.s.o1 are eypecled ro be
i:::[:ti: LTr: ilXi"Xi#;1,jiil'""0'" 

rs recosn]sed 
". "n 

u.."t ; it rs virruarrv ceda,n that ,",rouolr",,r w, be received and rhe amount or rhe

:;i;:'"H:"J li,:::!:",,"T;;:,",,:',xl:'":T;:1;:':r;[T:"::" ""osnised 
ar the date or sare or the rerevant prod!cts, at the manasements besr eslimate

3.'17 Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabllities are recognised when an enlity becomes a party lo lhe contra,ual provisions of lhe inskumenls.
Financral assels and fnancial liabllilles are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that aTe direcily attributabre io the acquisition or issue offinanclal assets and flnancial liabilities (olher ln", r."""Lr1".",r 

"io 
fln'an"iar r,"o,rir*s ur;r;;J; r;;il;;;3n'ano tossl are aoaed ro or deducted fromthe hir value of lhe financial assels or,fhancial Labrlitres, * .ppiopl,"t"l on initial re@gnition. rr"nsuaiin iosi. direc,y attribulable to the acq!isilion offrnancial assets or financial liabilities al farr value through profit and liss are recognrseo immediately in lhe statement of profl and Loss.

ln addfion' lor financ al reoodino purposes lair value measurements are cregoited into Lever .r, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inpuls to thefa r value measuTements are obiervatle ano ,r," .rs"if;";"j ih; ripiil ro thu r"i, urruu ,u""ur"r"n, in i . 
"ntirety 

which are described as fororej' Level I inpuls are quoted prices (unadjusted) ln activ; markets for idential assets or liabilities that the entily can access at the measuremenr date;' Level2lnputsareinpuls olherthanquotedpricesincludedwlhinLevell,thala.eobservableforlheasselorliabrtity 
eilherdirecilyorindirectlyiand. Level 3 jnpuls are unobservable lnputs for the asset or liabllity.

rl
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3.18 Financial assets

Recognition and initial measurement

Subsequent measurement

Financial assets

Financial assels and financlal liabiljties are recognised when lhe company be@mes_a party to the conkactual provisions of ihe inst.ument and areme4!red initially at fair value adjusted for transaciion costs, except for those'eiried ar farr varue through profil and ross which are measured iniliarv at fair

On initial recognitjon, a financial asset is chssified as measured at

- amortised @sl;

- Fair value through other @mprehensive in@me (FVOCI) _ debt investmeni;

- Fair value lhrough other @mprehensive in*r" ifvoctt _ 
"qu,tf 

investment; or
- Fair value lhrougn prof{ and loss (FVTP.)

;::ffi!fi:"i:r:':.nol 
reclassitied subsequenl to thelr inilial re@gnition except if and in rhe period the company chanses its business modet for

A financial asset is measured at amodised @st if jt meets bolh ot the following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPLi
-the asset is held within a business modelwhose obiective is io holdlssets to ollect ontractual€sh flwsi and

;[""i::f,*f[-'s or the rinancial asset sive rise on 
"p""ir.o 

o"t* il Li"i",,'.]ii"i#iffil iili,elrs or principar and interesr on the principar

A debt investment is measured at Fvocl if it meets both of the following conditjons and is not designated as al FVTPLI
-theasseljsheldwithinabusinessmodelwhoseobiectiveisachie"veoryboth@llecring"onjr""ru"i"*t frowsandseilingfinancialassets;andthecontractual terms of the flnancial asset give rise on specified dates to esrr flore that are solely paymenls of principalandintereslonlhepdncipalamounloulstanding. iv-!uiq'creJvrcrJPcvrrrE'rrsurprrn(

lnvestments in equity instruments are classified as at FWPL' unless the company irrevoably eleds on initial recognition to present subsequenl changesin fair value in Olher Comprehensive lncome for equity instrumenis wnicn are not hetO for traOing.

All financial assels not classified as measuled at amorlised cost or Fvocr as described above are measured at FWPL. This incrudes a, derivarivefinancial assets' on initial recog,nition,.the company may rreroeoy ousignar" a rinancial asset that oth"*i"-Jr""ta tn" r"qrirements to be measured atamortised cost or at FVocl al FVTPL if doing so etlminaies or signitic"nly ,"duc"s 
"n ""rcunting 

mismatch rhat rcurd otheruise arise.
D+reognition of flnancial assels

ilf:":"itf*"#jimilivifficognised 
v'hen the dghts to receive €sh flows from the asser have expired or rhe company has transferred irs rjghls to

3.19 Financiat liabitities

;ij;:Hl'r:a'*"' 
tecognilion, all non{erivative financial liabililies olher than derivative tiabitjties, are measured ar amorlised @sl using the effeclive

De-Ecognition of fi nancial tiabitities
A finaloal l'abilrty is de-re@grised Men the obligatro. under the riabihty rs d,scharged or cncelleo or eypres. when ar eyislrlg .inancial riab.ri' isreplaced by anolher from the seme lender on 

",0.t'"nti"ty 
oln"r"nt teils, or ttre terms-ot an **tin! ri"oir,ty 

"i" substantially modified, such an excha;ge
:J,::iri,TJ:1;:jftl:i""r""'1,""$1""r::"t;J 

ond rhe ons ;ar l,ab,ri'v 
"na 

in" ."*sni,,on or a new riau,ritv. *'e 
-o,i"'"n"" 

,n rhe .esoecrive ca.r,ns amoulrs

Offstting of firancial instruments
Financial assets and financia I lia bilities are oiiset and the net amou n1 is reporled in the balance sheet if the.e s a currenfly enforcea ble legal rig ht 10 offsetthe recognised amo!nls and there is an intention to settte on a ie1 LasL, to reatise tne assets ana settte the tiaJiliiies srmurraneousy.

3.20 lmpairment of financial assets
All financial assets except for those at FVTPL are subiect to review for impairment at leasr at each repoding date to rdentrfy utlether there is any objecllveevidence that a financial assel ol a company of financial 

".""t" ia i.p"ir"o. Different criteria to o"i"rri"""lr-p",rr"nr are appried for each €1egory offinancial assets ln accordance with tno-As tbg, tn" corp"nv 
"ppri"ilxpected 

creoit loss (EcL) model fo mJasuremenl and recogniuon of impairmentloss lor financial assets €rried at amoriised cost. ECL is fi,L ilJIghL; average of difference between att contractuat €sh ftows thal are due to thecompany in aEordance wilh the contract and all the €sl rro*" fl,"tir," corpany expects to receive, Ji."*nt"o 
", 

tn" original effeclive interest .ate, withthe respeclive rjsks of default occurring as the weights. when 
"",iiltinn 

flr" *at, rr*s the company is required lo consider -' All contractual lerms of the financial assels linctuiing prepaymeni 
"nj'ertunstonl 

ou", the expected life of the assels.' cash flow from the sale of mllateral held or other cieoit enharcement!-tnat are integml to lhe contraclual terms.

TEde receivables

The company applies approach permilled by Ind AS '1og Financial lnstruments, [hich requires lifetime expected credir rosses ro be re@gnised upon init]ar
'ecognition 

of recelvables Lifetime EcL are the expected creolt rosses resulling from ail possibre a"tiun uu"nt" over the expecled rife of a financiarinslrument. The Company uses the expected credit loss model to assess
credit ross arro@nce ro;trade;eceivabres. rire time expecieJ";;;;i;":lJ,'""1:'::;l"J::fi::HTf f:"#TT:fij:;:l3i:ff;,1*lexpedence for cuslomers and fore€st of macroeconomic Lctors.

Other Iinancial assts

For recognition of impairment loss!n other frnancral assers and frsk exposure, the company determines whether lhere has been a signifi€nl increase inthe credil rlsk since jnitjal recognition lf the creait ri+ t rs not inces-.iJ,gnifienrty srnce i"itur *""g"jt,"n,;"iompany measures the ross arowance atar amounl eoLal lo .12-morth 
evpecteo c.eo.t losses else at an a_ou.r-eqral lo rne l.etime e,pecf,d creoir losrs. wne. ra(.ng lhis assessmenl tneuompany uses lhe change h lhe risk of a default ocarring over th" u*p"ai"o rife of rhe financiar ass"r. ro ,lt" ir,-"r 

".r"ssmenr, 
the company comparesthe risk of a default occ!rrlng on the linancial asset a. ,t tn" 0"r""""-ar""t date wilh the risk oJ a defauft occurring on ihe flnancial asset as at the date ofinitial recognition and considers reasonable and supporlable inio*uJioo lhat is avaihble *itnour unore cosl Jr effod, lhal js lndi€tive of signifi€ntincreases in credit risk since inilial.rercgnrlion. rn" iorpr"v 

"..rr".in*,r," credii risk on. r.l""i"r 
".* n* not increased signifi€nily slnce injllalrecognition if the financial asset is delermtneU to nave tow creOii iisf aittre Oatance sneet Oate.

Cash and cash equivalents
cash mmpdses €sh on hand and demand deposils wrth banks cash equrvalenl-s ar-A shorr-term balances (with an originar maturity of three months or
ii"TJ;il"[:1"":L'"*uisir'on 

i' hishlv liouid -*,r".",1r, "=-Luoui 
l"^i'". 

"" 
,nro kro* amounrs or Gsh ald Micn a.e s-bjecr to nsisrir.€nr

For the purpose of the statemenl of cash flM' €sh and €sh equiva,ents consrst of €sh and short-term balances, as defined above, net of outstandingash credits as they are rcnside'ed an integt"r p",t ot rr," 
-orp"iv;. *"n ,"""g"r*t. The msh frry stalement is prepared using indirect method.



iAi IMPERIAL AUTO INDUSTRIES LIIVITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 lr,larch 2023
{Allamounts in INR lakhs, unless stated otheruise)

3.22 lnvestment in subsidiaries and associates
lnvestments in subsidiaries and associales are erried at cost less acamulated impairment losses, if any. where an rndi€tion of impairmenl exists, thecarrying amount of lhe inveslmenl is assessed and wrtten doM immediately to its re@verable amount. 6n disposal of these investments, lhe differencebetween nel d sposal proceeds and lhe carry,ng amounts are re@gnised in ihe statement of profit and loss.

3.23 Rounding off amounts
All amounls disc,osed in the financial siatements and notes have been rounded off lo the nearest lakhs as per the requlrements of schedule lll of the Actunless otheeise stated.
0 tepresents amounts rounded off to zero

3:24 Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty
The preparation of financial stalements in @nformity wjlh lnd AS requires management to make certain judgements and estimates that may effect theappli€tion of accounting policies, reported amounls and related disclosures.

\\eseiu(gmen\s and es\ma\es ma) ha\e an lmpacl on lhe assets and llabllliles, dlsclosure ol @niingenl l,abilities at the date of lhe financial statemenrc,and income and expense items for the period under review. Actual resulls may difler from rhese juagerients ano estimates.

All assumptions, expectalions and icre€sts thal are used as a basis for judgmenls and estimates in the financial stalements represent as acerately an

i:i:$;""n*"" 
ior the companv' These iudgements and eslimates only represent the interpretarion of the company as of the dates on which ihey

3.24.'1 Estimation of defined benefit obtigation
Employee benefit obligations ale determined using acluariai valuations. An acluarial valuation jnvolves makrng va.ious assumplions that may difler fromaclual developmenls' These inctlde Ihe eslimation of lhe apprcptiate discount rate, tuture salary increases aid mortality rates. Due to the complexitiesinvolved in the valuation and ils long-lerm nature' the employee benefil obligation is highly sensitive to cn"nj"" in tn"." 

"ssumptions. 
All assumpflons arerefiewed ar eacn reporltng dale.

The parameler most subject to change is lhe dis@unt rate. ln determining lhe appropriate discount rate, the managemenl consrders the rnrerest rales ofgovernment bonds with term thar correspond with the expecled term of rhe defined benefit obrigation.

The modality rate is based on publicly avaihble morlallty lables- Those mortality tables tend to change only at interual in response 10 demogEphicchanges. Future salary increases and gratuity increases are based on expected fut;re inflation rates for th-e resfective countries.

3.24.2 Deferred tax
Defefted lax is recognised in respecl of lemporary differences belween lhe qrrying amo!nls of assels and liabililies for financial reporling purposes andthe @responding amounls used for taxalion purposes. signirlenl managemenl judgemenl ls required to delermjne the amount of defetred tax assets that€n be re@gnised' based upon the likely timing and lhe le;el of future taxable profits together with tuture tax planning strategies.

3.24.3 Useful lives of depreciable/amortisable assets
lvlanagemenl revies the estimated useful lives and residual value of propedy, plant and equipment and inlang bles at the end of each reporting period.Factors such as chanoes in lhe expecled level of usage ould signiflently impact the economic useful ljves and lhe residual values of these assels.consequenlly, the future depreciat:on charge could be rryised and iay have an impact on tne protit oi ttre rutre years_

3.24.4 lmpairment of financial and non-financial assets
The impairment provisions for financial assets are based on assumptions aboul risk of default and expected €sh loss rales. The company usesjudgement n making these assumptlons and selecting the inputs lo the impalrmenl €lalation, uaseo'on company's past history exisling marketconditions as rell as foMrd-looking estimates at the end of each repoding penod.

The elrying amounts of lhe company's non-financral assets other than deferred tax assets are reviered at the end of each reporting period to delerminewhetherthereisanyindi€tionofimpairmenl lfanysuchrndr€tionexists,thentheasset'srecoverableamountrsestimated.

The recoverable amounl of an asset or €sh-general ng unit ('cGU ) ls the greater of its value in use and its iair vatue less msts to sell. ln assessing valuein use, the estlmated future €sh flrys are discounted io theii present value using a pre-tax dis@unt rate ihat rertects cunent market assessments of thelime value of money and the risks specific lo the assel or cGU. For the purpose of impairment t"sting, 
"s""t. 

thal ennot be lesled individually aregrouped together lnto the smallesl group of assels thal generates cash inflows from @ntin!ing use that are largely independent of the esh inflore of othe:assets or groups of assets (,CGU,).

Market related information and estimates are lsed to delermine lhe recoverable amount. Key assumplions on whrch management has based ilsdelermination of recoveTable amounl include estimated long term grMh rates, weighted average mst of ;pitaland eslimated operaling margins. cashflw projecllons take inlo account past experience and repre!ent m;nagemenl's best estimate about futu.e developmenls.

3.24.5 Contingencies
conlngentliablllliesmayarisefromtheo.dinarycourseofbusinessinrelaliontoclamsagainstthecompany 

ncludinglegal,contractualandotherclaims' By their nature, @ntingencres will be aesolved onty when one or more unceatain future events occur or fail to ocer The assessment of lhe
iXiJ?"j;riif,,!"ji!lral 

quantum, of continsencies inhe.;ntv involves rhe exercise of significanl ;rogr""; ""0 
the use of estimates resarding rhe

(This space has been lefl blank inlentionally)
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iAi IMPERIAL AUTO INDUSTRIES LIMITED
Notes to the standarone financiar statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(AIl amounts in INR lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

4.5 - Other assets

31 March
As As

March

(Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)
Capital advance
Balance wi'th statutory authorjties

Prepaid expenses

L Other non+urrent assets

paid under protest

538
043
oz
EO

813
't,192

41

51

(Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise

Balance wilh slatutory authorities
Prepaid expenses
Others

stated)

ll. Other current assets

to suppliers
1,103
4,324
2,260

67

565
5,616

819
427

4.6 - lnventories
at lower of cost and net realizable

material,

^ lncludes traded goods

# net of provision for obsolete inventory

dres

(This space has been left blank intentionally)

Particulars As
2023 31

AS

Raw

in progress

and spares
Finished goods^# i-

31

5,111
18,989

5

26,765
3,'1 95

1 8,753

55.655 48.728



iAi IMPERIAL AUTO INDUSTRIES LIMITED
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023(Allamounts in INR lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

4.7 -f rade receivables

Perticulars As al
31 March 2023

As at
31 March20zz

Secured, good
Unsecured, considered good
Receivable which have signjficanl increase in credit risk
Receivable credit impaired

Allowance for expected credit loss
considered good

Unsecured, considered good
Receivable which have significant increase in credit risk
Receivable credit impaired

59,154
95

(e5)

42,639
57

(57) 
I

I

59,.t 54 42,639

Trade receivable jncludes Rs. 928 lakhs (3'1 March 2022 Rs. 634 lakhs) receivable from related parties. Refer note- 4.39

Trade receivables ageing scheclule as at 31 March 2OZ3 and 31 March2022:

Particulars
at 31 March 2023

fot following periods from due date of payment
Less than 6 6 months to 1

1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 Total
months year

Undisputed trade receivables
years

considered good

which have significant incPase in credit risk
credit impaired

Disputed trade receivables
considered good

which have significant increase in credit rjsk

58,513 I
2

520

23

105

bb
8

4
59,1 54

95

tcredit impaired

Total trade receivables

Less: Loss allor/ance
Total

58,513

58,513

543

(23)

520

10

(2)

8

171

(66)

105

12

(4)

8

59,249

(e5)

59,154

As at 31 March 2022
Particulars for from due date of payment

Less than 6 months 3 Total
112 years 2-3 years

Undisputed trade receivables
considered good

which have significanl increase in credit risk
credit impaired

Disputed trade receivables
considered good

which have significant increase in credit risk
credit impaired

42,140 411

18

o6

25

16

11

42,639

57

4

J

Total trade receivables

Less: Loss allowance
Total

42,140

42,140
(57)

429

(18)

41,1

93

(2s)

68

27

(1 1)

16

7

(3)

4

42,696

42,639

(This space has been left blank intentionally)



iAi IMPERIAL AUTO INDUSTRIES LIMITED
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in INR lakhs unless stated otherwise)

4,8(a) - Cash and cash equivalents

4.8(b) - Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

Particulars As at
31 March 2023

As a.l

31 MarcF.2022

Deposits with original maturily more than 3 months and less
than 12 months 61

61 58

4.9 - Loans

Particulars As al
31 March 2023

As at
31 March2022

(Unsecured, considered good unless otherurise stateo
lnter corporate loan (refer note 4.44) 139 90

139 90

(This space has been left blank intentionaly)

Particulars As at
31 March 2023

As al
31 March2022

Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks:

-Current accounts
Cash on hand

81

zo
207

JI

107 238

i



iAi IMPERIAL AUTO INDUSTRIES LIMITED
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 3.1 March 2023
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless stated otheMise)

4.10 . Equity share capital

The company has only one class of equity shales having a par value of Rs. 1o each. Each holder of equity shares is entjfled to one vote per share.ln the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of lhe equity shares will be entifled to receive the rmaining assets of the company. The distributjon will be inproportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholder;.

(ll) Detail of shareholders holdjng more than S% shares of a class of sharesr:

(l) Reconciliation of number of equity shares and amounl outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year is as under

of shares in
For the year ended

31 March 2023
For the year ended

31 March2022
No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount

1,434 14,335 1,362 1 3,621
?1 714

1,434 14,335 1,434 14.

shares

29o/o

5o/a

11%
510/o

Rounded zeto

i*As per the records of the Company including lts register of member
on 1 9 November 2021 ' the company executed an agreement wilh stone Plant Investment BV (an affiliate of warburg prncus LLC) and shareholders to transfer 51 % equityshares in the company. The company approved the transfer of shares through its Board l,4eeting held on 14 Marcnzo22.
on 17 March 2023 stone Plant lnvestment BV further acquired shares from other shareholders, to increase its majority stake in company upto 70%

Details of shares held in the

(lv) Aggregalenumberof sharesissuedforconsideratlonotherthaneshdurlngtheperodof fiveyearsimmediatetypreceding3.l L,larch2o23:

Particulars

AS

For the Vear ende(
31 March 2023 31 M€rch 20221 31 Marctr 2021 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

714 
|

(v) The company has not issued any bonus shares nor has there been any buy-back of shares in the current year and preceding five years

(This space has been left blank intentionally)

As
31

As
3'l

1

150,000,000 Nos. (31 lvlarch 2022 150,000,000 Nos.) equity shares of Rs.i0 each

143,352,325 Nos. (31 March 2022 143,352,325 Nos.) equlty shares of Rs. 1 0 each

at 31 2022of the shareholder
shares

'/o

ivlrs. Preeti Lamba#
Mr. I/anav Sardana
Stone PIant lnvestments BV

10 each fully up by
Tarun Lamba

409
0

1,003

290/"

0%
oo/o

700/o

409

154

99% 1

Name of the shareholder

Tarun

BV

As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022 % change in
shareholdingNo. of shares % ofholding No. of shares % of holding

409
0031

29't
70v,

409
731

290/o

510/o

0a/,

370k

As at 31

No. of shares

1.4'12 960/^



iAi IMPERIAL AUTO INDUSTRIES LIMITED
Notes to the standarone financiar statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

4.11 - Other equity

Particulars As at
31 March 2023

As
,|

Caoital reserve
Opening balance / closing balance

Opening balance / closing balance

Opening balance
Movement during lhe year

losing Balance

Opening balance / closing balance

Retained earninos
Opening balance
Add: profit during the year
Add: transfer of revaluation reserve on sale of land (including tax impact)

tax impact of transfer of revaluation reserve on asset held for sale
remeasurement of defined benefit liability/(asset) (net of tax)

Closing balance

balance r.
to revaluation reserve

Add: tax impact
Less: reversal on sale of assets
Reclassifi cation adjustment

40 40

317

6,786
6,786

6,786 6,786

2,13'l 2,131

64,182
1 1 ,186

(0)
75,368

53,772
10,206

IJU
75
(1)

182

5,953
8,449

(1,e68)

3,871
2,949
(745)
(122)

12,434 q oaa

97,075 79,409

t
Oescription of nature and purpose of each reserve

i General reserve
General reserve is created from time to time by way of transfer of profits from retained earnings for appropriation purpose. General
reserve is created by transfer from one component of equity to another and is not an item of other comprehensive income.

ii Retained earnings
Retained earnings are created from the profit of the Company, as adjusted for djstribution to owners, transfer to other reserve,
remeasurement of defined benefit plan, etc. This also includes transfer of revaluation reserve on sale of lands

iii Capital redemption reserve
This reserve was created on forfeiture of shares by the Company. The reserve is not available for the distribution to the
shareholders.

;y Capital reserve
This reserve was created on forfeiture of advance received on transaction of sale of land. The reserve is not available for the
distribution to the shareholders.

v Revaluation reserve
This reserve was created on revaluation of land to its fair value. The reserve is not available for the distribution to the shareholders.
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iAi IMPERIAL AUTO INDUSTRIES LIMITED
Notes to the standarone financiar statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

4.12 - Borrowings

Nonturrent

* For details regarding repayment terms, interest rate and nalure of security on non current borrowings (Note 4.12 (a))

The money raised by way of term loans were applied for the purposes for which these were obtained.

" Fordetailsregardinginterestrateandnatureofsecurityoncurrentborrowings(Note4.12(b)
*. lnterest rate for commercial paper is 5.35o/o-7.ZOok p.a. (31 March ZO22 4.35o/o p.a.l.*** lnterest rate for packing credit is 5.95-6.1 O 

o/o p.a. (31 Match 20221 65_3 35% p a ).# Company has taken payables and receivables invoice discountjng facility from banks. lnterest rate is 6.1-2.8% p.a.

The funds raised by the Company on short term basis have not been utilised for long term purposes.

Refer note 4.41 for summary of quarterly slatements submitted to banks and its reconciliation with amounts as per books of
accounts.

(This space has been left blank intentionally)

t

Particulars As at
31 March 2023

As at
31 March 2O22

Measured at amortised cost
Borrowing - non current

banks
Secured

- Term loans* 5,200
5,200 5,933

Particulars As at
31 March 2023

As al
31 March2022

Borrowings
banks:

Secured
- Working capital cash credits*
- Working capital demand loans*
- Packing credlts*

Unsecured
- Kotak Bank commercial paper*,
- Packing credlts***
- Working capital demand loans
- Bill discounting from banks #

Add: Current maturities of long-term borrowings

2,171
2,479

1 0,800

3,000

I z,ca /

11

7,000
2,000

2,500
3,555

900

31,007
J,ZJ5

1 5,966
3,132

34,240 1 9,098
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iAi IMPERIAL AUTO INDUSTRIES LIMITED
Notes to the standa lone flna ncia I statements fo r the yea r ended 3l March 2023(Allamounts in INR lakhs, unless stated otheMise)

4..t2

Amounl
outstanding

as on 31 March
2023

Amount
outstanding

as on 3'l March
2022

Rate of intepst per annum Details of security offered

Corporation 2022

ii. Plot No 1 3i6, Mathura Road, Faridabad
First pari-passu charge of the curent assets.
First pari-passu charge on planl & machinery those(excludjng specjally

lenders

at
i. Plot No 93,sector 25,Faridabad

-passu ol

Limited

loans. including land & buildlng-as menljoned
i. Plot No- 93, sectotr2s. Farldabad

Mathura

pari-passu fixed ASSETSoncharge other than fromexclusively charged
below.

pari pasu on present and

3, (s1 First onpasu present future debts
fixedon otherassets thanchargepari-passu exclusively fromcharged

&landincluding mentionedbuilding-as below.
No-Plol sectotr25,93, Faridabad

outslanding
as on 31 March

outstanding
as on 31 March

2022

Rate of interest per annum Details of security offered

6
Pari pasu on stock

from
First Pari-passu on fixedcharge assets thanolher chargedexclusively

landincluding mentionedbuilding-as below.
Plot No- 93, Faridabadsectotr25,

7.20-7 .25ya) First pari-passu charge on fixed assets other
loans. includjng land & building-as mentioned
i. Plot No- 93, sectotr2s, Faridabad

than exclusively charged from
below.

and book

PIot Mathura

pasu charge on present and

5

7a%j
(31

Plot l\4athura

onpassu current company
Pari onpassu charge moveableentire assetsflxed
Parl passu on belowcharge immovable properties:

no.Plot 93,(1 Sector-25. Faridabad

(31

15-8.40%)

charge on plant & machjnery (excluding those specially

Flrst -passu at

pari-passu
term

Plot No 93,sector 25, Faridabad
Plot No 13/6, lvlathura Road Faridabad

pari-passu charge of the cuffent assets.

i

re

Amount
outstanding

as on 31 March
2023

Amount
outstanding

as on 31 Ma.ch
2022

Rate of interest per annum Details of security offered

3,500

No- 93, sector-2S, Faridabad

onpasu stock debts
pari-passu fixedoncharge otherassets than exclusively fromcharged

&landincluding mentionedbui ldi ng-as below.

Colporalion

Plot

oncharge present andpasu and
First pari-passu oncharge assetsfixed thanother fromchargedexclusively

landincluding & mentionedbuilding-as below.
Plot No- 93, sectotr25 Faridabad

4,300 2 000 March

Plot no. 1

First onpassu asseis company
PariFirst entireonchargepassu fixedmoveable assels

First Pari chargepassu belowon immovable propertles:
no.Plot(1) FaridabadSectotr25,

ParticulaE

AS

PIot
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iAi IMPERIAL AUTO INDUSTRIES LIMITED
Notes to the standarone financiar statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

4.13 - Lease liabilities

4.14 - Provisions

Particulars As at
31 March 2023

As at
31 Match2022

Lease liability - non-current (refer note 4.37)
Lease liability - current (refer note 4.32)

4,465
2,228

3,852
1,674

6,693 5,526

Particulars As al
31 March 2023

As at
31 March20zz

l. Provisions - non curTent
Provision for employee benefils

Compensated absence
Gratuity (refer note 4.40)

for afler related note

325
211

183

274
93

183
719 550

Particulars

Provisions - current
for employee benefits

i Compensated absence
Olhers
Provision sales

As al
31 March 2023

As at
31 March2oz2

46

57

+o
105 103

t
(This space has been left blank intentionally)
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iAi IMPERIAL AUTO INDUSTRIES LIMITED
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 3i March 2023
(Allamounts in INR lakhs unless stated otheMise)

4.16 -Trade payables

to parties Rs. 5,540 7,965) (refer no
lncludes interest payable to micro enterprises and small enterprises

Note - The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises

Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on
the basis of collected information available with the Managemenl, This has been relied upon by the auditors.
' Rounded off to zero

Trade payables ageing schedule as at 31 tvlarch 2023 and 31 March 2022..

.t

Particu lars As at
31 March 2023

As at
31 March 2022

outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
note below)*
outstanding dues of other than micro enterprises and small

enterprises# 30,549

5,324

28,687

36,31 4 34,O11

As
2023

As
3',i

Principal
lnterest due thereon'

(b) The amount of interest paid by the buyer as per the Micro Small
and lvledium Enterprises Development Acl, 2006 ([,4S[i]ED Act, 2006),
along with amounts of the payment made to supplier beyond the

accruqd and remaining unpaid at the end

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as

to micro and smallsuppliers as at

lilsMED Act, 2006

accounting year*

2006

The amount of interest

a mountThe tnof terest due thefornd(c payable ofPeriod delay
paymentmaking have been but the(which paid beyond appointed day

the withoutbutyea0 the interest theunderadding specified

are toactualV smallthe for thepaid enterprise ofpurpose
isallowance deductible underre th MSMEDexpenditu Act

date during each accounting year

The amounts remaining u
end of the year :

0

5,765
0

at 31 March

Less than 'l year 1-2 years 2-3 yeaE More than 3 yeaE Total
Undisputed trade payables

outstanding due 10 micro enterprises and small enterprises
others

Disputed trade payables
outstanding due 1o micro enterprises and small enterprises

30,291 Jb95

0
127

5,765
30,549

36,056 95 36 36.314

As at 31 Match 2022

Particulars Outstan d from due

Less than 1 year 1.2 yeaE 2-3 yeaB More than 3
Total

puted trade payables
outstanding due to micro enterprises and small enterprises
others

Disputed trade payables
outstanding due to micro enterprises and small enterprises
othe rs

5,324
28,370 75155 87

5,324
28,687

155 75

5,324

-.

Particulars

There are no unbilled trade payables hence the same is not disclosed in the ageing schedule.



iAi IMPERIAL AUTO INDUSTRIES LIMITED
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023(Allamounts in INR lakhs, unless stated otheMise)

4.17 - Other financial liabilities

** Rounded off to zero

4.18Other liabitities

(This space has been left blank intentionalV)

Particu lac As al
31 March 2023

but not due on borrowings
to micro, smalland medjum enterprises (refer note

cred itors

97

0

77

0
426

379 503

Statutory liabilities
Other liabilities

As at
31 March 2023

As at
31 March 2022

Jvb

464

678 745

t

Particu laE

current



Particulars For the year For the year
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iAi IMPERIAL AUTO INDUSTRIES LIMITED
Notes to the standarone financiar statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(AIl amounts jn INR lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

4.19- Sale of services

# to related note

4.20- Other operating revenue

4.21- Other income

* Rounded off io zero

4.22- Cost of material consumed

. lncludes packing material, consumables dies , instruments and zigs

4,23- Purchases of stock in trade

4.24 - Changes in inventories offinished goods and work_in -progress

I

Particulars For the year
March

For the year
31 March

and development charges

sales
878

1,704
195

703
2,131

Particulars For the year ended
31

For the year

ProJiton foreign cu[rency transactions and lranslations (net)
COVID 19 related rent concessions
Gain on lease modifications
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment

claim

lnterest income
Dividend income*

123
0

3,863

51

85

I

97
0

,358
86

160
98

327
240

Particulars For the year
2023

For the year
31 March

Raw material consumed*
Opening stock
Add: Purchases
Less: Closing slock

noteLess: Provision for obsolete

26,765
1,91 ,278
(31,549)

'18,450

1,36.324
(26,765)

1

Particulars For the year ended
March

For the year
3'l

Purchases of traded products
1,956 1 ,819

9

Particulars For the year
31

For the year
2022Opening stock

Finished goods*
1 8,753

195
16,762

1,279

Finished goods*
Closing stock

5. 111

,948

1 8,989

18,041

18,753

195T
100 21Provision obsolete note

* Includes traded goods

4.729 4,049

4,259 2,366

370
(2,522 (3.907



iAi IMPERIAL AUTO INDUSTRIES LIMITED
Notes to the standalone financiar statements for the year ended 31 March 2023(All amounts in INR lakhs. unless stated otheMjse)

4.25- Employees benefit expenses

Particulars For the year
31

For the year
1

to provident and other funds (refer note 4.40)
Staff welfare

wages
5

393
't.657

10, 1

357
1,082

11

4.26- Finance costs

4.27- Other expenses

nts to the auditor

(This space has been left blank intentionally)

Particulars For the year
31

For the year
2022

note no(refer 4.37),
costsborrowing

lnterest on borrorvings
lnterest on lease Iiabilities

7d6

442
270

1,233
412
112

Particu lars For the year ended
31

Fo. the
March

Corporate social responsibility expenses (refer note (ii))
Provision for diminution in value of investments
Ivliscellaneous

r charges

Business promotion and advertisement expenses
remuneration note(refer (i))

manpower

(refer note no 4.37)

and inspection charges
commission

for expected credit loss

Power and fuel
Repajr & maintenance

-Plant & machineries
-Buildings
-Others

Travelling and conveyance expenses
Postage, telephone and stationery
Freight and forwardrng expenses
Legal and professional charges

lnsurance charges
Rates and taxes

2,548
575
912

80
1,067

481
12,064

1,396

806

3,340
188

366
1,415

38

300

427

31,728
6,685

660

67
750

5,623
969

669
2,081

110

45
zo)

I ,177
57

262
237
c(z

3,149

1,953
553

Partlculars For the year
31

For the year ended
MarchAuditor

Fees limiteduding(incl reviews)
ofReimbursement expenses 48

3



on Social

* The Company has spent on the causes like promoting environmental sustainability and promoting education which are also prescribed under
schedule Vll of Companies Act, 201 3.

4.28- Exceptional items

iAi IMPERIAL AUTO INDUSTRIES LIMITED
Notes to the standarone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

tDuring the year, diminution in the carrying value of investment in respect of one of its subsrdiary amounting to Rs. s7 lakhs (represented byinvestment in equity shares) has been made to recognise a decline in the value of its investments**Assets written off during the year
**.AIlowance for obsolete inventory
# Sales commission termination cost paid to sales agent

t

(This space has been left blank intenlionally)

Particu lars For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March2022

Gross amount requireO to be during year
Amounl spent during the year

(i) Construction/ acquisition of any asset
(ii) On purposes other than (j) above -

(c) Shortfall at the end of the year
(d) Total of previous years shortfall
(e) Reason for shortfall
(0 Details of related parly transactions
(g) Where a provision is made with respect to a Iiabilily incurred by entering into a contractual

the movements in the provision during the year should be shown separately.

275

300

Not applicable
Not applicable
Not applicable

254

toz

Not applicable
Not applicable
Not applicable

Particulars For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March2922

lmpairment loss on assets held for sale
services fees paid during the period

Provision for dimrnution in value of investments*
written off*

inventory provision (wrilten down to scrap value)**'
Sales commission#

(57)
(254')

(564)

(350)

(1,332)
(2,207)

[-1,2251 (3,539)



iAi IMPERIAL AUTO INDUSTRIES LIMITED
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Allamounts in INR lakhs unless slated otherwise)

4.29 - Fair value measurements

A) Financial assets and liabilities
The accounting classification of each category of flnancial instruments and their carrying amounts are set oul below:-

Panicu lars Amortized Cost
As at 3'l March 2023 As at 31 March 2022

I Financial Assets

lii) lnvestmenrs- *
(ii1 Trade receivables
(iii) 6356 rro cash equivalents
(iv) Bank balances other than
cash and cash equivalents
(iv) Other flnancial assets
(v) Loans
Total

Financial liabitities
(i) Borowings
(ii) Lease Liabilitjes
(iii) Trade payables
(iv) Other financial liabilities
Total

0
59,154

107

61

3,980
139

0
42,639

58

3,381
90

63.441 46.407

39,440
6,693

36,314
379

25,031
5 526

34,O11

503
65,071

' Excludes investments in subsidiaries and associates, valued at cost
# Rounded off to zero

B) Fair value hierarchy
ln addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measuremenls are ctegorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to thefair value measurements are obseruable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:' Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities thal the entity can access at the measurement date;

;not"'"' ' 
inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 'l that are observable for the asset or liability, either directv or indirectry;

. Level 3 inputs are unobseruable inputs for the asset or liability.

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities measured at amortized cost
The management considers that the carrying amount of financial assets and financial liabilities recognised al amortised cost in the balance sheetapproximates their fair value.

4,30- Financial risk management

Risk management
(A) Credit risk

credit risk refers to the risk of defautt on its obligation by the customer/counler party resulting in a financial loss. The company,s exposure to credil riskis limited to the carrying amount of flnancial assets recognised at the date of the balance sheet

Cash and cash equivalents and bank balances

credit risk relating to cash and cash equivalents is considered negligible as counterparties are banks. The management considers the credit quality ofdeposits with such banks to be good and reviews the banking rerati-oisrrips on an on-going basis.

Trade Receivables
Trade receivables are unsecured in nature and are derived from revenue earned from customers. To mitigate the credit risk related to tradereceivables' the company closely monitors the credit worthiness of the trade receivables through inlernal systems that are configured to define creditIimits of customers thereby, Iimiting the credit risk to pre-clculated amounts. The company u*""."" increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis foramounts receivable that become past due and default is considered to have occurred when imounts receivable become past due. Top flve customersfor the year ended 31 rvrarch 2023 constitutes 1 B% of net trade receivabres (3.r March 2o2z: 4s)o )

Loans and other financial assets measured at amortised cost
otherfinancialassetsmeasuredatamortisedcostincludesloansandadvancestoemployees 

securitydepositsandothers.creditriskrelatedtothese
other financial assets is managed by monitoring the recoverability of such amounls continuously.

rt

Expected credit loss for trade receivables under simplified approach

The company recognises lifetime expected credit losses on trade receivable_s using a simpl;fied approach. ln accordance with lnd AS 109, thecompany uses expected credit loss model to assess the impajrment loss. 
.The 

compaiy uses'a provisiln matrix to compute the expected credit lossallowance ot trade receivables The provision matrix takes inio account available externaiand inteinal credit risk factors such as default ii"k or inor"try.historical experience for customers elc However, the allowance for lifetime expected credil loss on customer balances for the year ended 31 March2023, and for the year ended 31 March 2O2Z is jnsignifiEnt.

beginning of year
[,4ovement during the year

57
3B

As at 31\March 2023 at 3'l

Total loss

9,2 A'A



iAi IMPERIAL AUTO INDUSTRIES LIMITED
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

4.29 - Financial risk management (Cont'd)

(B) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Company cannot meet its financial obligations. The objeclive of liquidity risk management is to maintain
sufficient liquidity and ensure that funds are available for use as per requirements.

The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves and banking facilities. by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash
flows and by matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities for lhe company.
The Company has establjshed an appropriate liquidity risk management framework for it's short term, medium term and long lerm funding requirement.

Exposure to liquidity risk
The are the remain contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the date.

(This space has been left blank intentionally)

q

Particulars as on 31 March 2023
Contractual cash flows

Carrying
amount

Within 1 year 1.5 years More than 5
years

creditors
Borrowings
Trade payable
lnterest accrued but not due on borrowings

6,693

39,440
36,314

97

282
34,240
36,31 4

97

3,027

5,200

1,438

Particulars as on 31 March2022
Contractual cash flows

Carrying
amount

Within 1 year 1-5 years More than 5
years

lease obligations
Capital creditors
Borrowings

payable
accrued but not due on borrowings

5,526
426

25,031
34,011

77

1,674
426

1 9,098
34,011

77

, o?"

s,ges

919



iAi IMPERIAL AUTO INDUSTRIES LIMITED
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
{All amounts in INR lakhs, unless stated otheMise)

4.29 - Financial risk management (Cont,d)

(C) Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument wlll fluctuate because ot changes in market prices. ft4arket risk comprises two types of risknamely: currency risk and interest rate risk. The obiective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters,while optimising the return.

(l) Currency risk
The company is exposed to currency risk on account ol payables and teceivables in foreign cutrency. The functional currency of the company is lndian Rupee.

The exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting period expressed in rNR are as folows :

(a) Foreign currency denominated financial assets and liabilities, translated at the closing rate, are as follows;

Particulars March 2023

JPYReceivable 13 421

550
2,805
1.218

625
54

't2,871 1.587 398 (54)

Particulars 31 March 2022

Receivable
7,765

299
2,441

1,172 83

14

56
7,465 't,269 344 (42\

Sensitivity Analysis

A reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rales by 1 o% would have increased/ (decreased) equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown below. Thisanalysis assumes that all other variables in particular rates remain constant.

t

(ll) lnterest rate risk
lnterest rate risk is the risk that the future €sh flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The company's exposure tothe risk of changes in market interesl rates relates primarily to the Company's borrowings with floating ntere"st rates.

Exposure to interest rate risk

The company's interest rate risk arises majorly from borrowings carrying floaljng rate of interest. These borrowings exposes the company to cashflow interest rate risk. The exposure of the company s borrowing to interlst rateihanges at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

lnterest rate sensitivity analysis
A reasonably possible change of 1% in interest rates at the reporting dale would have affected the profit or loss by the amounts shown below:

Particulars
on tax

31 March 2023
USD Sensitivity

lNRi USD - lncrease by 1O%

INR/USD - Decrease by 1Oolo

Sensitivity
INR/EURO - lncrease by 10%
INR/EURO - Decrease by .10%

GBP Sensitivity
INR/GBP - lncrease by 1O%

INR/GBP - Decrease by 1O%

Sensitivity
INRiCNY - lncrease by 1O%

Decrease

1,2A7

(1,287)

15S

(15e)

40
(40)

(5)

5

747

1747)

\127)

34
(34) l

I

,i,l

As
31

AS

From banks
borrowings

31 007 13,466

1

Particulars As
31.

As

lnterest rates - increase by .tOO basis point (31 l\Iarch 2022:1OO basis point)
lnterest rates - decrease by 1OO basis point (31 March ZO22:1OO basis point)

310
(31 0)

135
(13s)

assuming the at the year was ng whole year.

USD EUR GBP JPY

ts/(liabilities)

3l March 2022

rate instruments

1'l t.tertF. ,i2,



iAi IMPERIAL AUTO INDUSTRIES LIMITED
Notes to the standarone financiar statements for the year ended 3.r March 2023
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

4.30 - Capital Management
The company's capital management objectives are to ensure the company's ability to coniinue as a going concern by majntajning stable capitalstructure with the focus on total equity and future development of business. thereoy increasinj the confidence of stakeholders.
The company monitors capilal on the basis of carrying amount of equity and amount of short term and long term borrowings adjusted for cashand cash equivalents and other liquid funds.

The Company manages its capital structure and make adjustments to it in the light of changes in the economic conditions and riskcharacteristics of the underlying assets for maintaining strong capital base so as to eisure independence, security as well as hjgh financialflexibility for potential fulure borrowings, if required.

4,31- Contingent liabilities, contingent assets and commitments

Iiabilities and assets

(1) lncome tax related contingent liabilities are primarily comprised of disallowances of some expenses in past returns filed,in respectof whichrefund is on hold.
(2) Excise duty case is primarily related to short payment of excise duty.
(3) GST credit case relates to excess availment of cenvat credit.
(4) Labour law case relates to employee related matter.
(5) Environment law related contingent liability is primarily related to water pollution case against the company.

Commitments

4'32 ' Earnings per share (EPS) -the numerator and denominator used to calculate basic and diluted earnings per share

(This space has been lef.t blank jntentionally)

{

Particulars As
March

As at
31 March2022

Shorlterm borrowings
Cash and
Debt
equity
to ratio

5,200
34,240

5,933
19,098

238
39,333

1 ,11 ,410
35%

24,793
93,744

26%

Contingent liabilities
31

As As

- Direct tax (1)
- lndirect tax

Excise duty (2)
GST credit (3)

- Labour laws (4)
- Environment law (5)

the Company not AS

I
36
13

5

62

I
50
13

5

Capital Commitments As
31 31

As

of contracts to bet. account
TOTAL 868 775

Particulars
31 March 2023

As
31 March

AS

attributable to

of Rs. 10

shareholders (A)

and share

ofnumberaverage haresequity outstanding the asusedduring year denominator (B)
in(Number lakhs)

as numerator (Rs. 11,186

7

1,434

10,206

1,370

7

125 '125

868 775



iAi IMPERIAL AUTO INDUSTRIES LIMITED
Notes to the standarone financiar statements for the year ended 31 March 2023(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless stated otheMise)

4.33 lnventories
The cost of inventories recognised as an expense during the year was Rs. 1 g5,733 (3.1 March 2ozz: Rs.12s,g2o). The amount of write_downof inventoriestofairvaluelesscoststosell recognjzed,'""n"rp"n""*asRs. 1,540(31 [4arch 2022.Rs. 1,181).

4'34 As per lhe transfer pricing norms applicable in India, the company is requrred to use certain specified methods in computing arm,s lengthprice of transactions between the associated enterpiises and maintain prescribed information and documents related lo such transactions.The appropriate method to be adopted will depend on the nature of the transactions/class of transactions, class of associated persons,functions performed and other factors, which have been prescribed. The company is in the process of updating the lransfer pricing study for
ff,j;:il 

flnancial period However, in the opinion of the management the same woulo not have a material impact on these financial

4.35 Reconciliation of liabilities from financing activities
Effective 01 April2017 ' the company aoopGo tne amendment to lnd AS-7, which require the entities to provjde disclosures that enable usersof financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilrties arising from financing 

"itiriii"", 
in"rroing both changes arisjng from cash flows andnon-eash changes' suggesting inclusion of a reconciliation between rhe opJning 

"nJ'"io"ing 
balances in the Balance sheet for liabilitiesarising from financing activities, to meet the disclosure requirements. The requireidLclo"rr" 

"r" 
presented below:

Particulars As on 01 April
2022 Cash flows

Non
As on 31 March

2023
lnterest
expense New leases

Non-current borrowings
(including current maturities)

Current

9,065

1 966

(632)

15

8,433

Lease Iiabllities 5,526 (2,200) 442 2,998 (73) 6,693

Particu lars As on 01 April
2021 Cash flows

Non cash cha nges Others
As on 31 March

2022
lnterest
expense New leases

Non-current
(including current maturities)

4,252

I 114

4,813
9,065

1Lease liabilities 4,742 (2,040t 412 2,779 (367) 5,526
4.36 Provisions - non current/ current

* Represents estimates for payments to be made in future for sares rerated obrigations.

a

Provision for
lmpairment

for

n*

after sales
related

on 31 March
during the year

duri
11

229
112

on
Addition during the year
Utilisatjoni reversal during the year

on 31 March 2023 (1 83)
229

46

Others

31,007



The leases which are recorded on the Balance sheet following implemenlation of lnd AS-116,Leases,are prjncipally in respectof buildings and land Lease terms are negotiated on an rndividual basis and contain a wide range of different terms &conditions.

iAi IMPERIAL AUTO INDUSTRIES LIMITED
Notes to the standarone financiar statements for the year encted 31 March 2023
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless stated othenivise)

4.37- Leases

(A) Leasing Activities;

of lease with its maturities

Current lease liabilities

Lease payments not recognised as a liability
The to not of the is as

(B) changes in the carrying varue of right-of-use assets by crass of assets is as foilows::

below March

the

.t

As at
31 March 2023

As al
31 March2022

asBalance theat ofbeginning yearreporting

of inlerest
Deletion during the year
Lease rent concession

5,526
2,998

442
(22)
(51)

(2.200\

4,742
2,779

412
(121)
(246\

(2.O40\
as at the

6,693 5.526

2,228
4,465

1,674
3,852

6,693 5,526maturities of lease
Wilhin 1 year
1 -5 years

3,027
1,438

1,674
2,933

919
6,693 5,526

Particulars
As at

31 March 2023
As al

3'l Maich 2OZZShort term leases
of low

7 10
80 67

Buildinq TGross carrying value
on01 Aptil2022

Revaluation increase
Disposals

2 \10

629
147

9,310
2,998

12,308

1't,829
J,OZt

147

1Accumulated depreciation
on 01 Aptil 2022

For the year
Deletions

JI

78
25

103

4,563 4,641
1,960

carrying value
As on 1 2023 3,192 5,810 9.002

Land Buildinq Totalcarrying value
on 0'1 April 2021

Additions
Revaluation increase
Disposals

l\ilarch

1,639
19

936
(75)

2.519

6,638
2,760

(88)
9.310

8,277
2,779

936
(1 63)

11 .829depreciation
on 01 April 2021

For the year
Deletions

March

OJ

25
(1 0)

78

2,684
1 ,885

(6)
t,sto

(16)

Net carrying value
on 31 2,441 4.747 7.188

Land

6 dqR 6.601

irs



iAi IMPERIAL AUTO INDUSTRIES LIMITED
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

(C)The following are the amounts recognised in statement of profit and loss

(D) Cash Outflow during the year

(This space has been left blank intentionally)

Particulars
As

31 31 March
AS

lnterest expense on lease liabilities
COVID 19 Telated rent concess,ons
Gain on remeasurement of lease-1 16
lnterest income on fair value of security deposit
Expense relating to short-term leases and leases of low value

expense assets

in other expenses)

1,960

442

(51)

(26)

80

(1 60)
(34)

67

1 ,910
412

Total

Particulars
As

31 31 Marchrepayments
1,758

442
1,628

Total

As al

4'12
2 04n
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iAi IMPERIAL AUTO INDUSTRIES LIMITED
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2oz3 (continued)
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

4,38 - Disclosures of lnd AS 1.ls
Effective 01 April 2018. the company has adopted lnd AS 1 '15 " Revenue from contracts with customers,, using the cumulative effectoption Theapplicationof lndAS115didnothaveanysignificantimpactonrecognitionandmeasurementofrevenueolherthanthose
disclosed in the financjal statements of the Company.

Disaggregation of revenue
The Company's revenue disaggregated by geographical markets ts as follows:

and to

of tn

Significant changes in contract assets and liabilities

Profit Contract

t

The Company has applied the practical expedient and has not disclosed ihe transaction price allocated to the remaining performance
obligations as the Company does not have any open contract for which the expected duration ls more than one year as at the end of thereporting period.

(This space has been left blank intentionally)

from contract with customerRevenue

March h 2022
Year

lndia
Rest

2,08,860 1,52,827
47

1

Timing of revenue recognition
in time

1

Description As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2OZ2
Non+urrent Current Non-current CurrentContract liabilities

Advance from cuslomers 30 JO

Description
Year

31 31 March
Year

as per contracted price invoiced) 2,85,361 912

as of

liabilities - Advance from customers

31 March
Year Year ended

March

38
(38)

30

58
(58)

38of

ofAmount revenue recognised against liabilitiescontractopening
Add: Addition tn ofbalance contract forliabillties current year

balance of Contract liabilities

72 94?
2,81 g,n2

2 81 AO) 'l 9s 899
2.8't.802

n2 ,t.99.89C



iAi IMPERIAL AUTO INDUSTRIES LIMITED
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

4'39 Disclosure of related party transactions in accordance with Ind AS 24 Related party Disclosures

Name of the Related Parties

Particulars
Wholly owned subsidiaries lAl lndustries

lmperial Auto USA Corporation

Imperial Martor Engine Tubes Private Limited

Auto Germany GmbH,Pleidelsheim
(formerly known as Sb Rohrform Und Schlauchtechnik Gmbh)

S J Rubber lndustries Limited

Associates Tokai lmperial Rubber lndia Private Limited
Tokai lmperial Hydraulics lndia Private Limtted

Nichirin lmperial Autoparts lndia Private Limited

Entities in which directors (or
his/her relative) are interested

Goodwell lnduslries

Solar Glass Works Limited

lmperial Auto lndustries

Key management personnel Mr. Tarun Lamba
Mr. Karan Lamba
l\4r. Vikram lvlehra

Mr. Pankaj Kumar (upto 31 December 2022)
Mr. Viraj Sawhney
Mrs. Smita Piyush Nlankad

Mr. Parthasarathy Vankipuram Srinivasa
[/r. Jagjit Singh
Mr. Dilip Tuli (w.e.f. 01 Januaty 2023)
Mr. Anand Dinkar Sontakke (w.e.f. 01 June2OZ2\
l\,4r. Swapnil Sinha

i



iAi IMPERIAL AUTO INDUSTRIES LIMITED
Notes to the standarone financiar statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

4.39 Related Party Transactions
As per the lnd AS 24 on "Related Party Disclosures" issued by the lnstitule of chartered Accountants of lndia, approved by board.transactions entered in to with Related parties of the Company are as follows:

Transactions with Who Owned S Com

of Balances with Owned Subsidia

t

S.No. As March 2023 At31 March 20Zz
lAl Industries Limited

Purchases
Sales
Sale of flxed assets
Purchase of fixed assets.
Purchase of consumable dies & tools*
Sale of consumable dies & tools
Rental income received
Professional

lmperial Auto USI Corporation
Sale

lmperial Martor engine tules e
Purchases
Sales
Sale of Raw l\4aterial
Job work income
Job work expenses
Others
Sale of fixed assets

Limited

of fixed assets

Rohrform Und Schlauchtechnik Gmbh)
lntercorporate Ioan given

Labour Charges
Professional Charges

known as

lnterest on

4

5

2

J

Purchases
Rental income
Purchase of fixed assets
Scrap Sale*

SJ lndustries

377

,095
3

0

0

1

240

693

d41

165
aea

1

181

1

1

25,867
1

94

0

41

19

170

I

11

43

0

115

3

232
otJ

0

0
1

1

267

796
6

0

S.No. Particulars At 31 March At 31

Account receivable

Account receivable

Account
Auto USA

Account
lmperial Martor Engine Tubes Private Limited

Rohrform Und Schlauchtechnik
Account receivable

Autolmperial Germany GmbH,Pleidelsheim known(formerly as Sb
Gmbh)

ble
S J Rubber Limited
Account payable

6

I

10

7

I ol

257

4,749

139

18

107

25

90

6,965

130



iAi IMPERIAL AUTO INDUSTRIES LIMITED
Notes to the standarone financiar statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

Transactions with Associate

of Balances with Associate

t

(This space has been left blank intentionally)

S. No. Particulars As At 31 March 2023 As At 31 March 2022
11

12

13

Tokai Rubber India Limited
Purchases
Sales
Rent received

received

140
5
1

6

530
211

0

2,644
J/b

I
195

105
6
1

6

408

1,589
49

135
0

Tokai Imperial
Purchases
Sales

lndia Private

Nichirin lmperial Autoparts lndia private
P urchases
Sales
Job work lncome

C o ns ultailon ch arges received
Repair & maintenance charges

S. No. Particulars As As At 31
14

'15

16

Tokai lmperial Rubber lndia Private Limited
Account receivable

lmperial Hydraulics Private Limited

Account payable

Limited

Account

Account receivable
Account

Autoparts
71

6
IJ

133

410

12

374



iAi IMPERIAL AUTO INDUSTRIES LIMITED
Notes to the standarone financiar statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

Transaction entities in

of of entities in

are

Person are

S. No. Particulars
As At 31 March

As At 31 March Z0Zz

Purchases
Sales

Job work expenses
Job work income
Job work
Purchase of fixed assets

S

Other

lndustries

- Purchases
- Sales
- Sale of raw material*
- Rent received
- Sale of fixed assets
- Others

SJ lndustries

Auto Industries

Purchases
Others

S.A. lnd

Goodwell Industries
Purchases
Sales
Salp of Raw Material
Job work
Purchase of fixed assets
Sale of flxed assets
Job work income
Others

Others.
Glass Works Limited

Other expenses*

Tyche Steel
Purchases

17

21

19

20

,a

IJ

24 Aura
Others

3

ob

0
177

4,306
141

2,074
J

10

2
0

4
3

50

4

14

0

30

961

172

,234
8

0
1

876
3

455
27

141
67

1,487
28

I

S. No. As At 2023 31 March
,V. Industries

Account receivable
Account

J Rubber lndustries Limited

S.A. lndustries
Account
Goodwell lndustries
Account receivable

Solar Glass Wort<s LimiteO

lmperial Auto lndustries

Tyche Steel
Account

26

t6

JU

31

J2

Account payable
Aura

420

22

0

5

379

4

97

534

0
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iAi IMPERIAL AUTO INDUSTRIES LIMITED
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

Transaction with and their

* Rounded off to zero
-- Till 31 December 2022
*** From 01 January 2023

^ From 01 June2022

Particulars As At31 March 31 March 2022

1

2

J

4

6
7

8

10

11

12
'13

14

15

to

17

18
'19

20)
21 I

22

25

ZO

28
29

30
31

Remunetation
lvlr. Tarun Lamba Chief Executive Officer
lvlr. ll'lanav Sardana Chief Operating Officer

lltlr. Wkram Mehra Company Secretary
Mr. Pankaj Kumar Chief Financial Officer..
Mr. Karan Lamba l\,4anager

Mr. Shirin Lamba Manager - export
lvlr. Dilip Tuli Chjef Financral Officer..-
Mr. Rajveer Sardana lvlanager
[,4r Jagjit Singh whole time Director
lvlr Narinder Kumar Vedi Whole time Director
Mr Anand Dinkar Sontakke Chief Operating Officern
Silting fees
Rent
l\.ilr. Tarun Lamba Chief Executive Officer
ftilr Jagjit Singh l\4anaging Director
IVlr. l\,4anav Sardana Chief Opera,ting Officer
Retainership Bonus
lvlr, Tarun Lamba Chief Executive Officer
Variable Pay
IVlr. Tarun Lamba Chief Executive Officer
[/]r. Dilip Tuli Chief Financtai Otficer
lvlrAnand Dinkar Sontakke Chief Operating Officer
Ivlr. Karan Lamba Manager
Professignal service fees
IVlrs. Smita Piyush l\4ankad
lv'lr, V S Parthasarthy
Sitting Fees
Mrs. Smila Piyush Mankad
[/]r. V S Parthasarthy

Sale of fixed assets
Mr. Tarun Lamba Chief Executive Officer
l\ilr. Karan Lamba Manager
Mrs. Preeti l\ilankotia
I\/rAnand Dinkar Sontakke Chief Operating Officer
Sale of lmperial silicon private limited (subsidiary)
Ivlr Jag.jit Singh lvlanaging Director
IVlr. lvlanav Sardana Chief Operating Officer

5

270

JOU

-20

46
270

5o

129
1

Jto

4b

40
34
21

10

10
10

58
58

168

390
J4

54
39

22
389

4

5
2
2

109

40
3,700

a

S. No-

8

6
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iAi IMPERIAL AUTO INDUSTRIES LIMITED
N otes to the standalone fi nancial statements for the year ended 3.t March 2023(Allamounts;n INR lakhs, unless stated otheMise)

4,40 Employee benefit obligations

A. Defined contribulion plans

a Provident fund: Provident Fund benefit is a defined contribution plans under which the company pays fixed contributions into funds established under EmployeeProvident Fund and lvliscellaneous 'Provision Act, 1952 and Employee State lnsurance n"t, lsaa re"p,;"tiv"ly. 
--

b rhe company has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further contribL,tions atter payment of the fixed contribution. The contributions recognjsed in respectof defined contilbution plans arc expensed as they accrue. Lia"bilities and assets may be recognised if underpaymenr or prepayment has occurred and are includedin cutrent liabilities or current assets, tespectively, as they are normally of a short-term nature.
c' The amount of conteibutions made by the company to employees'provident fund is Rs 359 lakhs (31 March2022: Rs.339 lakhs)

B. Defined benefit plans

Gratuity
The company operates a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five yea.s or more ol seryi@ receives gratuity on leaving the companyas per the payments of cratuity Act, 'r972. The scheme is funoed witn Lrc ano rndia First Gratuit;.
The foll@ing table summarizes the components of net benefit expense recognized in the Statement of profit and Loss and the funded status and amountsrecognized in the balance sheel for the respective planl

Current
Non- current

benefit

of and loss

and the fair of assets

211
211

The Company's gratuity fmds are managed by lAIL,s 'Employees Group Gratuity cum Life lnsuran@ Fund,, therefore the composition of the fund assets is norpresentt ascertainable.

tn

rt

* Included in finance cost

Amount

Other

expense

tn value of

in the

ParticulaE

31 March
As

3'l March
As

of the
year

assets as at

as

1 13

31 lvlarch 2023
As

31 March
As

Current service cost^
lnterest costt
Benefits paid

year

on

141
95

(s2)

129
78

10as

31 March
As

of at beginnjng year

on

Benefits paid

return on plan assets
89
30

80

(73)

8

laE
31 March

As
31 lllarch

As

Net cost
cost

141
6

129

the of
27

31 March 31 March
As

assets

tn assumptions
loss/(galn) from tnarising change demographic ass!mptions

onarjsing account ofloss/(gain) expelence adjustments

0
(18)

1,380
1 )87

211

ParticulaE ls atl
31 March 20231



ParticulaE n" 
"tl31 March 20231

As al
31 March 2022

age
Category I

rate of salary incTease'
rate of retuTn on plan assets

58

7 .laa/o

0.00%
7
0.00%

58 Years
85

iAi IIlIPERIAL AUTO INDUSTRIES LIMITED
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 lrarch 2023
(Allamounts in INR lakhs lnless stated otheMise)

*The estimate of expected rate of salary increase considered for the purpose of actuarial valuation take tnto account of inflation, seniority, promotion and otherrelevant factors such as supply and demand factors ln the employment market.

of the

Estrmated amount of contribution in the immediate next year is Rs.150 lakhs (Rs. .133 Iakhs).

C. Other long term employe benefits

Long term compensated absences

for

' The estimates of future salary increase take into account inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors.

(This space has been left blank intentionally)

Rs. lakhs

Rs,

'a

lmpact of change in
Discount Rate

Escalation Rate
Salary

of 1% lncrease on defined benefit obligations
ol 1Yo defined benefit

ol obligation as on 2023

83

92
85
79

lmpact of change in
Discount Rate Salary

Escalation Rate

lmpact of 1% lncrease on defined benefit obligations

value of as on March2022

on definedof '1
81

Particulac As at 31

March 2023
As at 31

Match 2022
As at 31

March 202i
Asat3l March

2020
As at 3l March

2019
benefit obligation

Plan assets
Deficit
Experien@ (gains) & losses on plan liabilities

on

1,524
1,314
(211)

0
0

1,38't
1,2A7

(e4)

10
(8)

1,272

(44)
(10)

,185
,251

66
(6e)

0

'1, 100

1,180
80

(18)
(11)

ParliculaE As on March 31,
2023

Rate {o/.}

As on March 31,
2022

Rate (%)

Weighted Average duration of the def ned benfit obligation

44

Fut!re salary increase.
Retirement age (yea.s)
Mortallty table

Ages (withdrawal rate %)
Up to 30 Years
From 31 to 44 Years

58 and
lALtrl 2012-'14 ult.

I

10.000/0

10 00%

7.00ya

58 and 85
IALM 2012-14 uft.

I years
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iAi IMPERIAL AUTO INDUSTRIES LIMITED
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 3,1 March 2023
(Allamounts in INR lakhs, unless stated otheMise.)

4.42 Analytical ratios

Ratio Numerator Denominator As at 31 As at 31 March
20222023 Variance

Current ratio

Debt-equity ratio

Debt seruice
coverage ratio

Return on equity
ratio

lnventory turnover
ratio

Trade receivabhs
turnover ratio

Trade payables
turnover ralio

Net capital turnover
ratio

Net profit ratio

Retum on Gpital
employed

Current assets

Total debt

Earnings available for debt seruice

Profit after taxes

Cost of goods sold

Revenue from operations

Net purchases

Revenue from operations

ProJil after taxes

Earnings before interest and taxes

Change in fair value of quoted
non.culrent investments

Current liabilities

Shareholdefs equity

Debt service

Average sharehoUeds equity

Average inventory

Average trade receivables

Average lrade payables

Revenue from operations

1.70

0.35

4.52

'10.90%

3.52

5.54

5.50

5.80

3.97Vo

11.77Vo

-7.85yo

34.260/0

-16.30%

-1 9.30%

23.72Vo

1 0.96%

1.84

0.26

5.39

't3.51Vo

2.85

4.99

4.23

5.13

5.110h

'14.870/o

Refer a.

29.90% Reterb

13.00%

-22.25Yo

-20.860/0

Return on
investment*

Capital employed
(Tangible net worth + Total debt)

Opening value of quoted non-
current

investments
rt

'All non{urrent investments of the company are in unquoted securities. thus reported as Nil.

a HigherratiointhecurrentyearonaccountofincreasedcurrentborrowingsavailedowingtoincreaseinoperatJonsandrelatedoperationaluse.
b. lmpact of better liquidity position as a resutt of improved realisation from cuslomers

(Ihls space has been teft blank intentionaly)

(%l

Average working capital
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